
 
 
Members of the public are welcome to attend committee meetings. However, occasionally, committees 
may have to consider some business in private. Copies of agendas, minutes and reports are available 
on request in Braille, in large print, on audio tape, on computer disk or in other languages. 

 

Safer Stronger Communities Select 
Committee 

Agenda 
 
Tuesday, 12 March 2019 
6.30 pm, Committee Room 4 
Civic Suite 
Lewisham Town Hall 
London SE6 4RU 
 
For more information contact: Katie Wood - 0208 314 9446 
 
This meeting is an open meeting and all items on the agenda may be audio recorded 
and/or filmed. 
 

Part 1 
 
Item  Pages 

 
1.   Minutes of the meeting held on 4 February 2019 

 
5 - 16 

2.   Declarations of interest 
 

17 - 20 

3.   Response to Referrals from this Committee 
 
There are no response to referrals due at this meeting. 

 

4.   Provision for the LGBT+ Community in Lewisham - 6 month 
update 
 

21 - 44 

5.   Comprehensive Equalities Scheme Annual Review 
 

45 - 76 

6.   Local Assemblies Annual Review 
 
Report to follow 

 

7.   Main Grants Programme 
 
Report to follow 

 

8.   Youth Offending Service Action Plan 
 

77 - 90 

9.   The impact of the Prevent Strategy and "Stop and Search" 
policy on community relations 
 
Report to follow 

 

10.   Select Committee work programme 
 

91 - 112 

11.   Items to be referred to Mayor and Cabinet  

Public Document Pack



 

Safer Stronger Communities Select 
Committee 
Members 

 
Members of the committee, listed below, are summoned to attend the meeting to be held 
on Tuesday, 12 March 2019.  
 
Janet Senior, Acting Chief Executive 

Thursday, 28 February 2019 
 
  

Councillor Pauline Morrison (Chair)  

Councillor James Rathbone (Vice-Chair)  

Councillor Tauseef Anwar  

Councillor Sophie Davis  

Councillor Colin Elliott  

Councillor Alex Feis-Bryce  

Councillor Sue Hordijenko  

Councillor Sakina Sheikh  

Councillor Bill Brown (ex-Officio)  

Councillor Juliet Campbell (ex-Officio)  

  

   
 



 

 

 
 
 

MINUTES OF THE SAFER STRONGER 
COMMUNITIES SELECT COMMITTEE 

Monday, 4 February 2019 at 6.30 pm 
 
 

PRESENT:  Councillors Pauline Morrison (Chair), James Rathbone (Vice-Chair), 
Tauseef Anwar, Sophie Davis, Alex Feis-Bryce, Sue Hordijenko and Sakina Sheikh and 
Juliet Campbell 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Councillor Joani Reid (Cabinet Member for Safer Communities), Acting 
Chief Superintendent Andy Carter, Winston Castello (Community Enterprise Manager), 
Gary Connors (Crime Reduction Service Manager), Dr. Zin Derfoufi (Associate Lecturer 
at St. Mary's University), Jamie Keddy (Community Engagement Officer) (MOPAC), 
Barrie Neal (Head of Corporate Policy and Governance), Essien Nosworthy, Neena 
Samota (Programme Director St. Mary's University and Stop Watch), Geeta 
Subramaniam-Mooney (Head of Public Protection and Safety) and Katie Wood (Scrutiny 
Manager) 

 
 
1. Minutes of the meeting held on 19 December 2018 

 
That the minutes of the meeting on the 19th December be amended at paragraph 
4.3 (bullet point 15) to add “as a lack of this data inhibits local government’s ability 
to scrutinise.” 
 

2. Declarations of interest 
 
Cllr Sophie Davis declared a personal interest in item 4 as she worked for the 
Behavioural Insights Team and the Metropolitan Police and MOPAC were clients 
of the organisation. 
 

3. Response to Referrals from this Committee 
 
There were no response to referrals considered at this meeting. 
 

4. The Impact of the Prevent strategy and "Stop and Search" policy on 
community relations. - Evidence Session 
 
4.1 Jamie Keddy, Community Engagement Officer, MOPAC gave a presentation to 

the Committee, a copy of which will be included in the agenda documentation. 
During his presentation the following key points were highlighted: 

 The Mayor of London, Sadiq Khan, was the Police and Crime 

Commissioner for London. MOPAC as the Mayor’s Office therefore support 

those duties. 

 The Met Police was the largest Police force in the UK covering 32 London 

boroughs and 8.7 million people. 

 MOPAC provides Police oversight and scrutinises the Police on a range of 

issues. In terms of stop and search, MOPAC’s role is to ensure the Police 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



 

 
 
 

2 

use their powers fairly, ethically and professionally. MOPAC uses the terms 

“Oversee; convene; deliver”. 

 MOPAC supports the Stop and Search Community Monitoring Groups. 

There is a strong focus on looking at the statistics on how stop and search 

is conducted in London. MOPAC uses the Police data dashboard and has 

also developed its own dashboard which they believe is easier to navigate. 

A major part of MOPAC’s role was about enabling community members to 

scrutinise the Police so developing accessible, easy to navigate statistics 

was really important. The site included outcome rates and was broken 

down by types of search such as section 60s. 

 The current structure of scrutiny at MOPAC is based around community 

monitoring networks and groups. The current structure has the Mayor at the 

top with MOPAC underneath followed by the Community Monitoring 

Network and under that the local community monitoring groups. The 

mechanisms feed up and down.  

 28 out of 32 London boroughs currently have community monitoring groups 

set up including Lewisham.  

 The Community Monitoring Network meetings are an opportunity for 

representatives from the networks to hear from senior Police officers on 

changes to policy etc. For example, the officer in charge of Stop and 

Search for London who regularly attends meetings. It is also an opportunity 

for local groups to feed into to London-wide policy and share the views and 

experiences of their local monitoring groups. The meetings take place 

quarterly.  

 PACE Code from 1984 Act says scrutiny needs to be provided with 

representatives of the local community. MOPAC have fulfilled this through 

the community monitoring network and the community monitoring groups. 

They look at issues such as grounds, stop slips, disproportionality. 

 Community Monitoring Groups are informed when a section 60 is put in 

place. This is help inform the local communities to help to reduce 

community tensions. 

 The feedback from the Community Monitoring Networks is that they 

generally support stop and search as long as it is targeted and intelligence 

led. 

 Disproportionality is a big concerns for the groups. The question that is 

usually asked is “why are young black men being stopped more” and the 

response tends to be that young black males are more likely to be involved 

as victims or perpetrators of serious violence. This is then followed by the 

question “does that give the Police the right to target young black males 

with stop and search and the view from the community is that “no it does 

not” and that is backed up by law. You can’t just stop people based on 

generalisations from the statistics. 

 Community Monitoring groups tend to accept that stop and search is a 

reality and has a place in preventing violence. However the groups often 

raise the importance of the “quality” of the encounter. Young people in 

particular can get a very negative view of the police from a poor quality of 

Page 4



 

 
 
 

3 

stop and search which has the potential to alienate them from the Police 

over a long period. 

 There was not currently much Council involvement in the Community 

Monitoring Network. As Council’s had a very good understanding of their 

local communities and of issues and concerns in their area, increasing 

council involvement in the monitoring network could be very positive. 

 Community monitoring groups tend to have positive relationships with their 

local Police. The groups have also been able to contribute to local training 

and pan-London training. For example there have been a number of 

members who have gone to Hendon to be involved in the training of local 

officers. 

 One of the biggest challenges was around maintaining a positive and strong 

relationship between the communities most affected by stop and search 

and the Police. Opening up pathways for engagement was important. 

Community engagement needed to be a key part across the borough. 

 At MOPAC there was an emphasis on increased transparency and 

accessibility to local communities and improving outreach work. 

 MOPAC was commissioning 40,000 “know your rights” leaflets which would 

go out to young people across London to help people understand their 

rights in relation to stop and search. 

4.2  Acting Chief Superintendent Andy Carter gave a presentation to the 
Committee, a copy of which will be included in the agenda documentation. 
During his presentation the following key points were raised: 

 Performance data locally and London-wide is important and included in the 

presentation documentation. 

 The London context over the last few years has been of violence increasing 

and in particular knife crime at a time when the number of stop and 

searches has been falling for a number of years. The Police have been 

working on using stop and search in an effective way and increasing 

understanding of the use of stop and search as a Police tactic.   

 The recent rise is serious violence has meant there has been an increase in 

stop and searches with December 2018 seeing the highest levels of stop 

and search across London. 

 Stop and Account had now been stopped. 

 Stop and search was a really critical tool in how the Police tackles violence 

and protects the local community. Last year across London stop and search 

resulted in over 2400 arrests for weapon offences alone. 

 The Police recognised that it was about using stop and search powers 

lawfully and respectfully and there is the right level of scrutiny around it. 

 The arrest rate across London was approximately 16%. The figure for 

Lewisham over the last 12 months was 21% therefore higher than the 

London average. 

 In 12 month period ending November 2018, across London there were 335 

complaints from stop and searches. In Lewisham there were 39 in this 

period which represented a 90% fall from the previous year. Of the 39 

complaints, 3 were upheld. 

Page 5



 

 
 
 

4 

 51% of the stop and searches in Lewisham over the last year were related 

to drugs with 25% for weapons. This is higher than London average for 

weapons and lower for drugs. This corresponds to feedback they received 

from the local community supporting more emphasis on weapons compared 

to drugs. 

 4352 stop and searches had been conducted in Lewisham in the last year. 

 Age profiles showed those most likely to be searched were in the 15-19 

year old age category. They were predominantly male and the ethnic group 

most likely to be searched was Black.   

 Lewisham invests a lot in training in the local context of stop and search 

and the need to conduct themselves professionally. They have also 

developed a local stop and search strategy. There is intense scrutiny 

internally and highlighting examples of good practice. Coaching is 

important.  

 The use of body-worn video has reduced the number of complaints, it also 

gives confidence to the police in carry out their duties relating to stop and 

search. 39 Complaints in the last 12 months only 4% have been upheld. 

 Section 60 had been a major contributing factor as to why stop and search 

had been increasing over the last year or two. It was a unique preventative 

power about stopping serious violence. It was authorised only by very 

senior officers of Superintendent level or above and always discussed with 

the Borough Commander before being implemented. 

 The power allowed searches without reasonable suspicion. Officers still 

needed to use their discretion.  

 The use of section 60s was scrutinised extensively through MOPAC and 

the monitoring boards. It was difficult to quantify the success as it was a 

preventative measure to stop further violence. Serious youth violence/ gang 

related violence, significant levels of disorder etc. are some of the grounds 

for using section 60s.  

 The Committee were invited to consider three scenarios and the types of 

challenges and time pressures the Police may face when deciding whether 

to use a section 60. 

 A member of the public commented that working with youth workers more 

effectively could help to resolve some community issues and therefore 

could potentially prevent the use of section 60s. 

 A member of the public commented that preventative work by schools 

officers on an on-going basis would also be important and could help to 

reduce potential conflicts. 

 A member of the public commented that working more closely with the 

schools involved could be more helpful. For example, in the scenario where 

an issue/conflict had been identified amongst pupils in particular schools 

they could have a method to immediately focus afternoon lessons on 

assemblies etc. looking specifically at the issue with the aim of reducing 

potential conflict.  

 A member of the committee commented that as section 60 powers were 

used as a preventative power it was important to consider all the other 

Page 6



 

 
 
 

5 

important preventative and collaborative work which was important to carry 

out in the local community on an on-going basis. 

 A member of public asked whether the scenarios presented would be useful 

for using with young people and community groups through workshops etc. 

 Jamie Keddy mentioned that there was a judgement exercise workshop that 

the central Police Stop and Search team ran and they invited 

representatives from the local community monitoring groups to take part. 

This had potential to be rolled out further. 

4.3  Neena Samota, Stopwatch and Programme Director Criminology and 
Sociology, St Mary’s University, gave a presentation to the committee, a 
copy of which will be included in the agenda documentation. During her 
presentation the following points were raised:   

 Stopwatch was a research and action organisation for fair and accountable 

policing. It was a coalition of academics, lawyers, community action groups, 

young people and civil society groups. The aim of the organisation was to 

promote fair, effective and accountable policing. 

 The organisation has campaigned against disproportionate use of stop and 

search since 2010, the use of exceptional stop and search powers and the 

weakening of associated scrutiny mechanisms. 

 “The Colour of Injustice” report was published by Stopwatch at the end of 

2018. 

 The presentation focuses on the outcomes data from the Met Police 

dashboard but looks at what that means for local communities. 

 In 2013, Theresa May as Home Secretary called for a review of Police stop 

and search powers. This was an important point for driving more community 

work and having a greater understating about how these powers were used 

by the Police and what their impact on local communities could be and in 

particular BAME communities. 

 Neena Samota, also sat on the Independent Advisory Group for the Young 

Review looking at disproportionate outcomes for Black and Muslim men 

involved in the criminal justice system and had also given evidence to the 

Lammy Review. 

 It was a good moment to look at issues of disproportionality following the 

findings of these reviews. 

 2013-14 marked a highpoint in the review of stop and search powers and 

left some really useful changes which were welcomed at Stopwatch.  

 Nationally the use of stop and search had dropped significantly 

representing an almost 75% decrease in usage.  

 However, at Stopwatch they believe that the residual use of the power 

focusses more on policing Black and ethnic minority groups and this was 

therefore problematic because it was a key driver of disproportionality into 

the criminal justice system and thereafter the continuation of 

disproportionate outcomes. 

 It was useful to study the Lewisham data compared the Met average to 

understand what was unique and what was working well. Working with local 

organisations to get a good picture of the situation locally. 

Page 7



 

 
 
 

6 

 It was positive that the Safer Stronger Communities Select Committee was 

looking at this matter and having open meetings inviting a range of groups 

to better understand the local picture. 

 The reasons for stop and searches remained consistent that the primary 

reason was looking for drugs. At a London level this is 58.4% compared to 

54.9% in Lewisham. 

 The use of section 60 powers came down dramatically after the 2013-14 

review across London. 

 The rate of stop and search per 100 per ethnicity showed that if you were 

black you were 3.3 times more likely to be stopped and searched compared 

to a white person in Lewisham December. 

 The rate per stop and search per 1000 by age was based on the 2011 

census data in terms of ethnicity. It could be useful to look at the mid 2015 

population estimates or even the annual population estimates to get a more 

accurate picture. 

 Section 23 misuse of drugs act searches per 1000 population in Lewisham 

also showed higher rate of searches for Black people. If you changed data 

to look at males only the disproportionality increased. 

 The Colour of Injustice report showed that Black people were actually less 

likely to consume drugs so it would be helpful to have a better 

understanding on these issues at a local level so as to fully understand 

what is happening. 

 Proportionality in relation to section 60 was where a lot of the problems 

were felt in relation to local community groups as it was a suspicion-less 

power. The Roberts Case was tested in the Supreme Court which ruled that 

Section 60 powers must be applied only when strictly necessary. 

 The majority of stop and searches in London and in Lewisham result in “No 

further action” (67.3% in Lewisham versus 70.01% in London.)  

 Positive outcomes by ethnic groups is a different picture in Lewisham 

showing the highest number of positive outcomes in relation to drugs was 

for Asian groups. In terms of positive outcomes for “going equipped” and 

weapons offences the highest numbers of positive outcomes were in the 

white and Asian groups.  

 In terms of future focus, interrogating the data and the scrutiny element is 

very important. And working with local community and youth groups to 

understand the reality behind the date. 

4.4  Councillor Joani Reid, Cabinet Member for Safer Communities addressed 
the Committee and highlighted the following: 

 Stop and Search was a major issue for the community and people cared 

passionately about it. 

 The position of the Lewisham administration was that there was not a 

problem with the idea of “stop and search” itself but it was important to 

ensure it was fairly carried out.  

 In regards to the public health approach to crime and a comparison with 

Glasgow, the stop and search model Glasgow use is not a contentious 

issue for the majority of people living in Glasgow because it isn’t seen as 

targeting a particular group disproportionately. 

Page 8



 

 
 
 

7 

 Intelligence-led policing is important but the “reasonable grounds” in the 

stop and search legislation was not considered sufficient by some within the 

community as there were young black men who felt harassed and 

victimised because they are repeatedly stopped and searched. 

 Positive outcomes often result in personal drug use offences whereas the 

majority of the public who support intelligence-led stop and search feel 

there should be an emphasis on more serious crime such as knife and 

weapons offences. Therefore there are potentially two separate ideas about 

what constitute “reasonable grounds” and what it should be used for. 

 70% of stop and searches result in no further action and many members of 

the community were concerned by this. 

 Community-led changes were important particularly involving those most 

affected. The Community Monitoring Group was now starting to meet more 

frequently. The data they were presented with initially was not easy to 

navigate. The Council had supported the group with data analysis skills. 

 The Council could support the group with qualitative data as well such as 

helping with organising to shadow the Police etc. and analysing body-cam 

footage etc. This required reaching out to communities to get a cross-

section of people engaged. 

4.5  Essien Nosworthy, a member of the public addressed the Committee and 
raised the following key points:  

 Engagement was a wider issue between community and Police and the 

Council in general. 

 Mini Police was a national scheme which started in schools at a young 

age and would be a great opportunity for the Police and young people to 

work together to provide a positive face and role models within the 

Police force. 

4.6 In the discussion and questions that followed, the following key points were 
raised: 

 The Police’s current focus with their Schools Officers was in secondary 

schools as they didn’t have enough resources to work in primary as well as 

secondary. 

 A member of the Committee raised concerns regarding the level of 

disproportionality and that the conversation needed to focus on what to be 

done next such as on-going unconscious bias training which Councillors 

could also partake in and observe.  

 The work should start at Primary school. A lot of people had inherited from 

their parents a distrust of the Police from historic policing that 

disproportionately targeted particular communities. Primary school would be 

key to changing these perceptions. 

 Regarding section 60s, a member of the committee stated that a high level 

of communication was really key in these circumstances and that all 

Lewisham Councillors should be informed when a section 60 was 

implemented.  

 Support for the Stop and Search Community Monitoring Group was a key 

issue. 

Page 9



 

 
 
 

8 

 A member of the committee raised concerns regarding the percentage of 

positive outcomes and that 21% was not good. Following undertaking 

workshops in his ward with local community members, he had been 

shocked by the numbers who had been stopped multiple times without 

being arrested and that those individuals all now felt that they wouldn’t 

interact or report to the Police in any circumstances including if they had 

been a victim of or witness to a crime. Another issue had been that all the 

people who had participated in the workshop were not aware that any 

record had been made of the stop and search, they were not given a slip 

and may well therefore not appear in any statistics. The complaints figures 

being only 39 could also be because many people did not know their rights 

regarding complaining or did not feel like any complaint would be fairly 

considered. There could therefore be issues that are not shown in the 

statistics presented. 

 Andy Carter informed the Committee that it was important that the Police 

were involved in local workshops and therefore it was concerning that many 

people were reluctant to engage with the Police and therefore more had to 

be done to ensure positive relations. He would welcome any support from 

the Council or local community groups on how to positively engage. 

 Jamie Keddy stated that unconscious bias training had been raised at the 

Community Monitoring Network meetings and the central Police Stop and 

Search Team in the Met Police were rolling out a lot of training in 

unconscious bias and also doing this for new recruits. 

 Sustained support for the community monitoring groups was important to 

avoid fractures and groups breaking down etc. MOPAC would be carrying 

out a base-lining exercise to assess where all the groups were at asking for 

details of group’s structures, numbers, ages of members and how they feel 

we can support them to get what they need.  

 The “know your rights” leaflets could be positive to help Londoners 

understand their rights if they are stopped and searched and what they can 

do if there is an issue. The aim is to reach young people in particular. 

 A member of the Committee raised the importance of increasing diversity 

within the Police to better reflect the communities they serve. It was also 

raised that many young people who the Committee members had met at 

the Youth Independent Advisory Group at Lewisham Police station had 

raised issues around how they had been spoken to or dealt with by the 

Police. They were not against the idea of stop and search in itself or even 

being stopped but they wanted to be treated fairly and with respect and 

politeness.  

 The data needed to be improved to help look at more evidence around 

outcomes and the quality. For example in more “well-to-do” 

neighbourhood’s people were not being stopped with such high intensity.  

There was also links to the modern slavery agenda and potential 

disproportionality within that. 

 It was raised that it was a shame that the Prevent data was not available to 

look at disproportionality in respect to Prevent. 

Page 10



 

 
 
 

9 

 The mistrust of the Police was deep in certain communities and there were 

many interventions that were potentially needed and there was a big piece 

of work at a national level to be done.  

 There were many community members from all parts of the Lewisham 

community who supported stop and search to tackle serious violence. 

 A member of the Committee raised a concern regarding the complaints 

statistics across London and that only 355 complaints in London 

represented only 0.2% of all searches which seemed implausible low and 

that maybe this was indicative that the people being stopped primarily 

young people may not know their rights or the mechanisms for doing this. 

The complaint had to be made specifically against the conduct of the officer 

for this to be considered a complaint.  

 Close supervision of officers to ensure the best possible behaviour 

including challenging peers etc. was important. 

  
4.7 RESOLVED: 
 

That the evidence presented be fed into the review and invited expert 
witnesses be thanked for attending the meeting. 

 
5. Youth Violence and Knife Crime 

 
5.1 Councillor Pauline Morrison invited members of the Children and Young 

People Select Committee to take part in the discussion for this item. 
 
5.2 Geeta Subramaniam-Mooney, Head of Public Protection and Safety 

introduced the report to the Committee. During the discussion that followed, 
the following key points were raised: 

 

 Standing orders were suspended at 8.25pm  

 A comment was made that more needed to be done in terms of 

preventative work and the root causes of the rise in youth violence. Work 

should be undertaken in schools and links made to young peoples’ mental 

health.  

 A comment was made that The London Needs You Alive campaign had not 

been well received by young people. 

 The CYP Select Committee’s review on exclusions was positive in raising 

the profile of the key factor that exclusions can play for young people and 

communities. 

 Focus on the public health approach to youth violence would help embed 

other factors such as mental health, early childhood experiences etc. in to 

the picture. 

 Increased focus on building positive relations between the Police and 

community groups was important. 

 The Council was providing on-going support to the Community Monitoring 

Group by producing accessible data analytics. 

 The Council was working with a range of voluntary community groups and 

with the organisation For Jimmy to support community activities. 

Page 11



 

 
 
 

10 

 It could be important for the Children and Young People Select Committee 

to work together with Safer Stronger Communities Select Committee in the 

future on issues such as serious youth violence. 

 It was important to monitor the success of the Universal Schools Safety 

Programme to see what was successful and what was not. 

 There were many interlinked issues such as London organised crime 

networks, county lines, people trafficking and exploitation such as through 

nail bars. The whole systems/public health approach was key to reducing 

violence. 

 
5.3 RESOLVED: 
 

That the report be noted. 
 

6. Lewisham Disability Coalition 
 
6.1 Winston Castello, Community Enterprise Manager presented the report to 

the Committee. During the discussion the following key points were raised:  

 The organisation had received £87,000 from the Main Grants Programme. 
It was important to take a retrospective look at whether anything could have 
been done sooner and whether there was sufficient monitoring in place. 

 Concerns were raised by members of the Committee that the Main Grants 
Programme should continue to fund programmes and organisations that 
supported people with disabilities.  

 The organisation had received advice and support from the Council but the 
Trustees had chosen not to act on the advice. 

 In the new round of Main Grants funding there was a stronger focus on 
governance and more detailed monitoring was required. 

 Members of the Committee felt strongly that capacity in the voluntary sector 
in Lewisham for people with disabilities needed to be maintained and 
therefore this should be supported and maintained through funding through 
the Main Grants Programme. 

 
6.2 RESOLVED: That a referral be made to Mayor and Cabinet as follows: 
 

 The Committee were very concerned about the loss of provision in 
the borough for services for people with disabilities. 

 

 The Committee requested that a referral be made to the Mayor 
and Cabinet requesting that they ensure that organisations with 
similar expertise who supported people with disabilities were 
supported and funded through the Council’s Main Grants Process. 
This was to maintain capacity in the voluntary sector in Lewisham 
to support this vulnerable group 

 
 

7. Select Committee work programme 
 
7.1 Katie Wood, Scrutiny Manager introduced the report to the Committee. 

Page 12



 

 
 
 

11 

 
7.2 RESOLVED: 
 
 That the March meeting should start at 6.30pm 
 

That the agenda should be reduced following consultation with the Chair 
and Vice-Chair. 

 
8. Items to be referred to Mayor and Cabinet 

 
8.1 RESOLVED: 
 

A referral was made to the Mayor and Cabinet on item 6. Lewisham 
Disability Coalition noting that: 
 
1) The Committee were very concerned about the loss of provision in the 

borough for services for people with disabilities. 
 

2) The Committee requested that the Mayor and Cabinet ensure that 
organisations with similar expertise who supported people with 
disabilities were supported and funded through the Council’s Main 
Grants Process. This was to maintain capacity in the voluntary sector in 
Lewisham to support this vulnerable group 

 
 
The meeting ended at 9.50 pm 
 
 
Chair:  
 ---------------------------------------------------- 
 
Date: 
 ---------------------------------------------------- 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



Safer Stronger Communities Select Committee 

Title Declaration of interests 

Contributor Chief Executive Item 2 

Class Part 1 (open) 12 March 2019 

 
Declaration of interests 
 
Members are asked to declare any personal interest they have in any item on the 
agenda. 
 
1. Personal interests 
 

There are three types of personal interest referred to in the Council’s Member 
Code of Conduct: 
 
(1) Disclosable pecuniary interests 
(2) Other registerable interests 
(3) Non-registerable interests 

 
2. Disclosable pecuniary interests are defined by regulation as:- 
 

(a) Employment, trade, profession or vocation of a relevant person* for profit or 
gain 

 
(b) Sponsorship –payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than 

by the Council) within the 12 months prior to giving notice for inclusion in the 
register in respect of expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a 
member or towards your election expenses (including payment or financial 
benefit  from a Trade Union). 

 
(c) Undischarged contracts between a relevant person* (or a firm in which they 

are a partner or a body corporate in which they are a director, or in the 
securities of which they have a beneficial interest) and the Council for goods, 
services or works. 

 
(d) Beneficial interests in land in the borough. 
 
(e) Licence to occupy land in the borough for one month or more. 
 
(f) Corporate tenancies – any tenancy, where to the member’s knowledge, the 

Council is landlord and the tenant is a firm in which the relevant person* is a 
partner, a body corporate in which they are a director, or in the securities of 
which they have a beneficial interest.   

 
(g)  Beneficial interest in securities of a body where: 
 

(a) that body to the member’s knowledge has a place of business or land 
in the borough;  

Page 15

Agenda Item 2



(b) and either 
 

(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or 1/100 of 
the total issued share capital of that body; or 
(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total 
nominal value of the shares of any one class in which the relevant 
person* has a beneficial interest exceeds 1/100 of the total issued 
share capital of that class. 

 
*A relevant person is the member, their spouse or civil partner, or a person with 
whom they live as spouse or civil partner.  

 
3.  Other registerable interests 

 
The Lewisham Member Code of Conduct requires members also to register the 
following interests:- 

 
(a) Membership or position of control or management in a body to which you 

were appointed or nominated by the Council 
(b) Any body exercising functions of a public nature or directed to charitable 

purposes, or whose principal purposes include the influence of public 
opinion or policy, including any political party 

(c) Any person from whom you have received a gift or hospitality with an 
estimated value of at least £25 

 
4. Non registerable interests 

 
Occasions may arise when a matter under consideration would or would be likely 
to affect the wellbeing of a member, their family, friend or close associate more 
than it would affect the wellbeing of those in the local area generally, but which is 
not required to be registered in the Register of Members’ Interests (for example a 
matter concerning the closure of a school at which a Member’s child attends).  

  
5.  Declaration and Impact of interest on members’ participation 

 
 (a)  Where a member has any registerable interest in a matter and they are 

present at a meeting at which that matter is to be discussed, they must 
declare the nature of the interest at the earliest opportunity and in any 
event before the matter is considered. The declaration will be recorded in 
the minutes of the meeting. If the matter is a disclosable pecuniary interest 
the member must take not part in consideration of the matter and withdraw 
from the room before it is considered. They must not seek improperly to 
influence the decision in any way. Failure to declare such an interest 
which has not already been entered in the Register of Members’ 
Interests, or participation where such an interest exists, is liable to 
prosecution and on conviction carries a fine of up to £5000  
 

 (b)  Where a member has a registerable interest which falls short of a 
disclosable pecuniary interest they must still declare the nature of the 
interest to the meeting at the earliest opportunity and in any event before 
the matter is considered, but they may stay in the room, participate in 

Page 16



consideration of the matter and vote on it unless paragraph (c) below 
applies. 

 
(c) Where a member has a registerable interest which falls short of a 

disclosable pecuniary interest, the member must consider whether a 
reasonable member of the public in possession of the facts would think 
that their interest is so significant that it would be likely to impair the 
member’s judgement of the public interest. If so, the member must 
withdraw and take no part in consideration of the matter nor seek to 
influence the outcome improperly. 

 
 (d)  If a non-registerable interest arises which affects the wellbeing of a 

member, their, family, friend or close associate more than it would affect 
those in the local area generally, then the provisions relating to the 
declarations of interest and withdrawal apply as if it were a registerable 
interest.   

 
(e) Decisions relating to declarations of interests are for the member’s 

personal judgement, though in cases of doubt they may wish to seek the 
advice of the Monitoring Officer. 

 
6. Sensitive information  

 
There are special provisions relating to sensitive interests. These are interests the 
disclosure of which would be likely to expose the member to risk of violence or 
intimidation where the Monitoring Officer has agreed that such interest need not 
be registered. Members with such an interest are referred to the Code and 
advised to seek advice from the Monitoring Officer in advance. 

 
7. Exempt categories 
 

There are exemptions to these provisions allowing members to participate in 
decisions notwithstanding interests that would otherwise prevent them doing so. 
These include:- 

 
(a) Housing – holding a tenancy or lease with the Council unless the matter 

relates to your particular tenancy or lease; (subject to arrears exception) 
(b) School meals, school transport and travelling expenses; if you are a parent 

or guardian of a child in full time education, or a school governor unless 
the matter relates particularly to the school your child attends or of which 
you are a governor;  

(c) Statutory sick pay; if you are in receipt 
(d) Allowances, payment or indemnity for members  
(e) Ceremonial honours for members 
(f) Setting Council Tax or precept (subject to arrears exception) 

 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Committee Safer Stronger Communities Select Committee   Item 4 

Title Provision for the LGBT+ Community in Lewisham Scrutiny Review 
 

Wards All 
 

Contributors Chief Executive, Executive Director for Resources 
 

Class  
 

Date 12th March 
2019 

 

 

Purpose  
 

1. This report sets out the response to the recommendations arising from the 
Safer Stronger Communities Select Committee’s review entitled: 
“Provision for the LGBT+ Community in Lewisham”, which was adopted by 
the Committee on 13th December 2017. 

 
2. The initial response to the recommendations contained in the report, were 

reported to this Committee on 12th July 2018. This report represents an 
update on the initial response and the further progress that has been made 
in implementing the recommendations contained in the review.   

  
 

Recommendations  
 

3. It is recommended that the Committee:  
 

i) Note and consider the progress made in implementing the 
recommendations, since the last report was received by the Committee in 
July 2018. 

 
ii) Indicate any recommendation, where more progress needs to be made in 

order to satisfy the intention of the report.  
 

Policy Context  
 

4. The Council’s Corporate Strategy 2018-22 includes the following seven 
priorities which shape the borough’s approach to the welfare of its citizens:  

 
 Open Lewisham – Lewisham is a welcoming place of safety for all 

where we celebrate the diversity that strengthens us.  
 Tackling the housing crisis – Everyone has a decent home that is 

secure and affordable. 
 Giving children and young people the best start to life – Every child has 

access to an outstanding and inspiring education and is given the 
support they need to keep them safe, well and able to achieve their full 
potential.  

Page 19

Agenda Item 4



 

 

 Building an inclusive local economy – Everyone can access high-
quality job opportunities, with decent pay and security in our thriving 
and inclusive local economy.  

 Delivering and defending: health, social care and support – Ensuring 
everyone receives the health, mental health, social care and support 
services they need. 

 Making Lewisham greener – Everyone enjoys our green spaces and 
benefits from a healthy environment as we work to protect and improve 
our local environment. 

 Building safer communities – Every resident feels safe and secure 
living here as we work together towards a borough free from the fear of 
crime.     

 
5. Within the Council’s priorities there are number of commitments that are 

relevant to this report: 
 
Under open Lewisham- 

 We will work with groups giving voice to the borough’s diverse lesbian, 
gay, bisexual and transgender (LGTB+) community. 

 We will strive to make the Council’s workforce more representative of 
our borough’s diverse population at all levels.  

 We will actively challenge all forms of discrimination, including tackling 
unconscious bias and supporting local awareness campaigns. 

 We will support events that bring our community together. 
 We will work closely with the police so that perpetrators of hate crime 

are brought to justice. 
 

            Under delivering and defending: health, social care and support- 
 We will make our sexual health services easier to access, offering choice 

and quality throughout the borough. 
 
 

Background  
  

6. At its meeting on 13 December 2017, the Safer Stronger Communities 
Select Committee considered the final report on the Provision for the 
LGBT+ Community in Lewisham.   Following the Select Committee 
meeting, a referral was made to advise Mayor and Cabinet asking that the 
Executive Director for Resources and Regeneration respond to the 
review’s recommendations. This reports highlights the updates to the initial 
responses that were reported to the Committee in July 2018.  

 

Referral: Recommendation 1 
 

7. That the London Borough of Lewisham should resource, produce and 
adopt a Lewisham LGBT+ Community Action Plan. The Action Plan should 
be annually reported back to the SSSC throughout the next administration.  

 

Context: 
 

Page 20



 

 

8. That in recognition of the broad and diverse nature of this topic, the fact 
that Lewisham has 2.4 times the national average of LGB residents and 
the limited time and resource available through Scrutiny that we should 
draw on similar authorities’ approaches, in developing in partnership with 
the LGBT+ Community and other key stakeholders an action plan that 
should align with the Councils Comprehensive Equality Strategy. 

 

Initial response – July 2018 
 

9. The approach whereby separate action plans are developed for distinct 
equalities strands was deployed for several years, prior to the introduction 
of the Equality Act 2010. However, though well-intentioned, this approach 
had the unintended consequence of fragmenting Lewisham’s equality 
response into separate silos and creating what amounted to ‘a hierarchy of 
inequality’. As such, and following the introduction of the Equality Act, the 
Council took a view that a single equality framework represented the most 
effective way forward to address equalities issues. This approach has 
been underlined by the current Comprehensive Equalities Scheme, which 
focuses on five major Council strategies and which essentially seeks to 
ensure that equalities is embedded seamlessly within and across the 
business system. Alongside this, a Council-wide review of equalities 
monitoring and impact analysis was launched last year, geared towards 
improving the collection and effective utilisation of monitoring data for 
service improvement. A programme of targeted service initiatives is now 
planned – primarily focusing on front-facing services.  In promoting 
equality, the challenge facing the Council is to ensure that existing 
frameworks for decision-making and deployment of resources, operate as 
effectively as they need to and not create additional systems to do what 
existing systems should do.   

 

Update on initial response – March 2019 
 

10. The Council is in the process of reviewing the Comprehensive Equalities 
Scheme for 2016-20, in preparation for the new scheme for 2020-24. The 
review will allow for an extensive 12 months of engagement and 
consultation with key stakeholders and explore ideas and contributions as 
to the best way forward. As with previous iterations of the scheme, the 
Council must give consideration to how best to achieve its equality 
objectives, whilst at the same time, ensuring that resources are used to 
best effect. Officers will engage and keep the Committee up to speed with 
this work.  

 

 

Referral: Recommendation 2 
 

11. That the Mayor should work to ensure that through the Council’s internal 
and external communications, the Council includes positive and 
celebratory stories and imagery that reflect all protected characteristics, 

Page 21



 

 

including LGBT+ people, with these woven through specific interest 
pieces, and also through more generic topics.  

 

Context: 
 

12. Although the report highlights areas where inequalities exist, it is important 
to consider the LGBT+ community, and all communities, particularly those 
with protected characteristics, in terms of a “community asset model”, 
empowering and facilitating them to use their inherent skills as a resource 
to form sustainable, community owned solutions. 

 

Initial response –July 2018 
 

13. Over the past year we have worked hard to promote the incredible 
contribution that LGBT+ communities make to life in Lewisham. In 
February 2018 we published details about LGBT History month on our 
website homepage throughout the month. We also shared messages 
about LGBT+ History Month 2018 on Facebook and Twitter with 
thousands of our residents. Following the elections on 3 May 2018 we will 
work with the Mayor and Cabinet to develop a communications plan which 
will share positive and celebratory stories about Lewisham’s LGBT+ 
communities with our staff and residents. 

 

Update on initial response – March 2019 
 

14. We have increased awareness of our LGTB+ community across our 
external and internal communication channels this year. As part of 
LGTBQ+ month in 2019, we have promoted a range of events and 
activities happening throughout the borough. Our communication plan has 
included a range of events and activities from film screenings to disco 

nights, clothes swaps to theatre performances and meet ups. 
 

15. We have created a dedicated LGTBQ+ mailing list and promoted more 
events including book displays, International Day against Homophobia and 
Transphobia, Pride and Anti-bullying Week. Further, as part of the Local 
Democracy Review, our communications plan has supported dedicated 
engagement with the LGTB+ community. 

 
 
 

Referral: Recommendation 3 
 

16. That a consistent and ‘whole-organisation’ approach (including via 
contractors/commissioned partners) to equalities data gathering/monitoring 
be implemented.  

 

Context: 
 

Page 22



 

 

17. Equalities monitoring was found to be lacking on some casework systems, 
and in routine questions to service users. This should be corrected at the 
earliest opportunity. Monitoring questions should be aligned to latest ONS 
‘questions and guidance’ on equality and diversity across all protected 
characteristics and be omitted only on the rarest exceptions. The Council 
should ensure it is clear to service users why the information is being 
sought, and how it will be used. Collecting this information will inform and 
enhance the decision-making process within the borough and the 
allocation of resources and service provisions. 

 

Initial response – July 2018 
 

18. In October 2017, the Council launched a major review of its approach to 
equality monitoring and impact analysis. The review, which has been 
overseen by the Council’s Corporate Equalities Board on behalf of the 
Executive Management Team, has taken a fundamental look at how best 
drive service improvement through the effective use of equalities data as 
well as innovative ways to engage services and service providers in that 
effort. The aim is to ensure that the Council’s policy is exemplified, not just 
by what it espouses, but by the consistency of practice and ways of 
working demonstrated by staff and others who operate on its behalf. 

 

     Update on initial response – March 2019  
 

19. The Council’s Corporate Equalities Board has included equalities data 
monitoring as a targeted piece of work on the Board’s 2019-20 work-
programme. A key element of this will be launched through the Council’s 
2019-20 service planning process and will require services to 
demonstrate, much more clearly, their approach to equality monitoring. 
Officers will also be attending Directorate Management Teams to re-
inforce the message on equalities monitoring. Additional and updated 
guidance and communications will be developed and published on the 
corporate intranet to facilitate the new approach. The aim to extended this 
framework to include third parties from whom the Council’s commissions 
services. 

 
 

Referral: Recommendation 4 
 

20. Service provision across the Council should look at the “whole person” and 
consider multiple characteristics when ensuring the best options for 
individuals. This may necessitate reviews of screening questions.  

 

Context: 
 

21. Service provision across the Council should look at the “whole person” and 
consider multiple characteristics when ensuring the best options for 
individuals. This may necessitate reviews of screening questions 6 as well 

Page 23



 

 

as additional learning and development for staff to understand any barriers 
or issues that their service users/customers may face. 

 

 Initial response – July 2018 
 

22. In February 2018, following the corporate policy review of equality, the 
Executive Management Team agreed a new and more robust approach to 
the gathering and analysis equalities data for the purposes of service 
assessment and provision. Building upon the existing approach (which 
already looks at multiple characteristics) additional questions relating to 
caring responsibilities, language spoken and income status were added to 
the corporate survey. This approach has been further strengthened by new 
requirements for equality analysis assessment, which now challenge 
services to describe the ‘service user journey’ that could be impacted by a 
decision. This process will enable services to better understand, ahead of 
time, how and to where a service user might be displaced and how best to 
mitigate this as part of an effective joined-up, cross-Council response. In 
conclusion, however, whilst the Council will continue to use the best 
information available to it; neither residents nor service users are obliged 
to provide equalities data – nor does the Council have any right to demand 
it. 

 

 
Update on initial response – March 2019 

 
23. The Housing Needs service has changed the way it works with its clients 

in the last 18 months. Authorities are required under the Homelessness 
Reduction Act to provide detailed assessments and personalised housing 
plans that capture the circumstances that led to homelessness or the 
threat of homelessness.  

 

24. In Lewisham, staff have been trained to change the skills used in 
interviews to create collaborative conversations with clients. These 
conversations form the basis of clients’ Personal Housing and Wellbeing 
Plans, which outline the steps both the client and the Council will take to 
prevent or relieve homelessness. The Housing Needs service strives to 
understand the underlying causes to someone’s homelessness, such as 
financial difficulties, and provide appropriate support. A holistic 
assessment of the client’s circumstances including equalities monitoring is 
essential to this work. The steps agreed in someone’s Personal Housing 
and Wellbeing Plan are tailored to their individual circumstances and 
agreed between client and officer.  

 
25. In the Private Sector Housing Agency (PSHA), resettlement officers work 

with residents in housing need to ensure they are settled into their new 
private rented accommodation. This includes making residents aware of 
local services such as doctor’s surgeries, schools, police station, CAB 
office, dentist surgeries etc. They do this by building on the conversations 
with clients had by the Housing Needs service above. The PSHA has also 

Page 24



 

 

commissioned a small research project from Lancaster University to better 
understand how to work and support residents in the private rented sector 
to support the PSHA licensing and enforcement work. The research aims 
to identify barriers for residents who are reluctant to engage with PSHA at 
the moment.  

 
26. All staff within Strategic Housing have also attended People First training - 

provided by Mary Gober International – which focussed on putting the 
customer at the centre of all activity. 

 
 

 

Referral: Recommendation 5 
 

27. That the Council’s workforce should match where possible the community 
it serves, consideration should be given by the Mayor on how to identify 
any protected characteristics where this is not the case, and the causes for 
it, and seek to improve the levels of representation. 

 

Context: 
 

28. 1.8% of LBL staff identify as being LGB on staff surveys (para 9.2) and 2% 
of the UK population identify as LGB (ONS, Sexual Identity, UK: 2016). 
The Lewisham Residents’ Survey (2015) identified 4% of Lewisham’s 
population as being LGB. In terms of having a workforce that reflects the 
community it serves, Lewisham’s workforce figure is therefore below the 
national and local estimated LGB population. 

 

 Initial response – July 2018 
 
29. The introduction of the new Oracle system means that Lewisham will be 

able to encourage more existing employees to complete protected 
characteristics data. This will be actioned later in 2018 when a self-serve 
option is made available, which will enable all employee is go on line in to 
their employee record and record any protected characteristics. Internal 
communication will encourage employees to carry out this activity. This is 
an activity we can only enable and encourage as ultimately it is up to the 
employee to declare information. We already have higher declarations 
than the benchmark of Leicester County Council. A further review of 
Lewisham’s data will be undertaken with a comparison to London once this 
excursive has been completed.  

 

  Update to initial response – March 2019 
 

30. No new developments to report. 
 

 

Referral: Recommendation 6 
 

Page 25



 

 

31. That during staff induction, new staff should be informed about the 
different staff forums available and HR should include new starter 
information/staff packs with clear information and signposting about 
support and staff forums. Councillors also should receive copies of the 
staff pack for information. Equalities training should be mandatory for all 
Councillors, and where appropriate for staff. Human Resources should 
look at the best practice provided by Leicester County Council and apply it 
locally in consultation with the LGBT+ staff forum. This should include 
producing: a “Managing LGBT+ Staff Guide”; auditing Council policies to 
be more LGBT+ inclusive (i.e. family leave, and removing gender-based 
pronouns); and creating a pan-organisation network of forums to support 
and join up good practice and joint LGBT+ initiatives. 

 

Context: 
 

32. Paragraph 9.26. The End of Life Care Policy where views from the LGBT 
staff forum were sought and used to help shape policy. 

 

Initial response – July 2018 
 

33. The current induction for new employees includes an online staff pack. 
This details the staff groups and forums available and is open to all new 
and existing employees. In addition to this welcome pack, all new 
employees are invited to Coffee with the Mayor, a monthly gathering of 
senior managers, the Mayor and representatives from the staff groups to 
meet with and welcome, new employees to Lewisham. There is presently 
no equalities resource within HR to match the Leicester Council approach 
to LGBT+. Consideration needs to be given to have dedicated resource in 
this area as organisations that are exemplars will have dedicated people 
and resource allocated.  

 

      Update to initial response – March 2019 
 

34. No new developments to report 
 

Referral: Recommendation 7 
 

35. That the LGBT+ Staff forum and other staff forums (and the staff that 
facilitate them) be given the time and resources to bring their communities’ 
interests and knowledge as a resource to embed across the Council. The 
Council should see these forums as a rich resource for canvassing opinion 
on policies and proposals and should introduce processes to support and 
embed this across the Council.  

 

Context: 
 

36. Paragraph 9.26. The End of Life Care Policy where views from the LGBT 
staff forum were sought and used to help shape policy. 

  

Page 26



 

 

Initial response – July 2018 
 

37. Staff forums have time to meet and discuss specific issues which affect 
their community. HR currently consult on draft policy and guidance with 
staff groups where relevant, e.g. the Disability Staff Forum recently 
reviewed new disability and discrimination e-learning. 

 

         Update on initial response- March 2019 
 

38. We have discussed with LGTB+ forum provision of gender neutral toilets. 
We sponsored LGTB+ history month event at Little Nans in Deptford. We 
have also met with representatives of the LGTB+ forum to discuss and 
develop a new Trans awareness online training programme.   

  
 

Referral: Recommendation 8 
 

39. That the Council should adopt a system where there is an elected member 
appointed Council Lead/Champion for each protected characteristics 
under the Equalities Act 2010. The appointment should be made through 
Full Council.  

 

Context: 
 

40. Through corporate policy, the Leicestershire County Council has 
developed a strong Equalities and Diversity Strategy with a high level of 
commitment from the Council Leader and the Cabinet Lead for equalities 
issues. There was a culture of everyone being responsible and every 
Council department had a representative on the Equalities Board which 
also included representatives from all staff forums and trade unions. The 
culture was embedded across the organisation and was highly visible. The 
positive benefits were also highlighted and recent staff surveys had shown 
that 91% of staff felt that the Council was committed to Equalities.  

 

Initial response – July 2018 
 

41. The Mayor will appoint a Member Champion for equalities at the next Full 
Council meeting who will work alongside the Cabinet Lead for equalities to 
ensure that equalities issues are kept at the forefront of Council business. 
The Member Champion will also work alongside the Cabinet Lead for 
equalities taking a lead role in the community by giving voice to 
Lewisham’s strong and diverse LGBT community. 

 

     Update on the Initial response – March 2019  
 

42. The Mayor has not yet appointed an equality champion. 

 
Referral: Recommendation 9 

Page 27



 

 

 
43. That the Council should ensure there is a specific joint strategic needs 

assessment (JSNA) for the LGBT+ community. This review by the Safer 
Stronger Select Committee should be used as part of the evidence base. 
The Health and Wellbeing Board should be instructed to consider this as 
an urgent priority, making use of the evidence from this review. 

 

Context: 
 

44. The Committee were concerned that there was a lack of evidence on the 
LGBT+ Community in the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) given 
the complex health and wellbeing needs of this community and the vital 
role the JSNA has in the commissioning of services. 

 

Initial response – July 2018 
 

45. We will instruct the Health & Wellbeing Board to consider a Joint Strategic 
Needs Assessment of the needs of the LGBT+ community as an urgent 
priority, and recommend that the Board’s JSNA steering group, which is 
chaired by the Director of Public Health, considers it at its next meeting.  
The Board will recommend that the JSNA steering group uses the review 
by the Safer Stronger Select Committee, the evidence contained within it, 
and the examples of good practice LGBT+ needs assessments from 
elsewhere. 

 

Update on initial response – March 2019 
 

46. A proposal is being submitted to the JSNA steering group of Lewisham’s 
Health & Wellbeing Board to undertake a JSNA review of the needs of 
LGBT residents. This substantive needs assessment will commence in 
2019 and will take approximately 3-6 months to complete. It will review the 
health and care needs of LGBT residents across the range of health and 
social care services. 

 
 
 

Referral: Recommendation 10 
 

47. The Committee also noted that not all Equalities Act protected 
characteristics had a specific JSNA needs assessments. The Committee 
felt that the Mayor should also look into this further, to ensure 
commissioning is based on the needs of all residents.  

 

Context: (10 and 11) 
 

48. From feedback received during the evidence sessions and from research 
undertaken by the LGBT+ Foundation; NHS service users identified 
significant barriers to accessing LGBT+ inclusive healthcare provision in 
Borough. The Committee were impressed with the LGBT Foundation’s, 

Page 28



 

 

Royal College of GPs endorsed, ‘Pride in Practice’ quality assurance mark 
for primary care services. 

 
Initial response – July 2018  

 
49. Appendix F of the Lewisham JSNA guidance on completing a JSNA on 

any topic describes how protected characteristics should be considered. 
We will ask the Health & Wellbeing Board to ensure that this guidance is 
adhered to for all JSNAs going forward. 

  

Update on initial response – March 2019 
 

50. Going forward, all future JSNA needs assessments on any topic will be 
required to comment on and where possible analyse inequalities relating to 
all protected characteristics, including sexual orientation and gender 
reassignment. 

 
 

Referral: Recommendation 11 
 

51. That the Council facilitates a meeting with the Lewisham clinical 
commissioning groups (CCG’s), the LGBT+ Foundation and other key 
stakeholders, with the aspiration of Lewisham being the first London 
Borough to launch the ‘Pride in Practice’ or similar LGBT+ health quality 
assurance scheme. 

 
Initial response – July 2018 

 
52. The Director of Public Health has already contacted the LGBT Foundation 

to seek advice on how a council and CCG can support local GP practices 
to achieve the ‘Pride in Practice’ award.  Individual GP practices apply 
directly to the LGBT Foundation for the award, but we will explore with the 
Foundation how we can promote and support the scheme locally. 

 

Update on initial response – March 2019 

53. Lewisham has successfully bid to receive funding and support from the 
LGBT Foundation ‘Pride in Practice’ initiative for up to 50 local GP 
Practices and pharmacies, and our sexual health clinics, to become Pride 
in Practice accredited practices. Pride in practice is a quality assurance 
support service that strengthens and develops Primary Care Services 
relationship with their lesbian, gay, bisexual and transgender (LGTB) 
patients within the local community. Pride in Practice is suitable for all 
Primary Care Services, including GP Practices, Dentists, Pharmacies and 
Optometrists, and is endorsed by the Royal College of GP’s.   

 

Page 29



 

 

Referral: Recommendation 12  

 
54. That to begin to tackle the issue of LGBT+ substance misuse, the council 

should review and take lessons from the recommendations outlined in the 
National LGB Drug and Alcohol Database "Part of the Picture" Briefing 
Sheet for Commissioners and Policy Makers and Department of Health 
funded London Friend’s “Out of your mind” research, and advocate for 
other health partners to do similarly. 

 

Context:  
 

55. It was of concern that LGB People are more likely than their heterosexual 
peers to partake in alcohol and substance misuse. The Committee heard 
how some jointly commissioned services were being delivered at 
considerable distance from the Borough and that future commissioned 
services outside of Borough should make an assessment of accessibility 
and cost to users, given the evidence from Metro about the LGBT 
community facing poorer income and employment outcomes. 

 

  Initial response – July 2018  
 

56. All substance misuse service for Lewisham residents are based within the 
borough. These services are: 

 
 the main complex needs service delivered by CGL which has base on 

Lewisham High Street and a range of outreach provision including at 

Lewisham Hospital, Lewisham Police Station and a range of 

appropriate community settings 

 the shared care service delivered by Blenheim CDP in conjunction with 

8 GPs across the borough which two located in each of the health and 

social care neighbourhoods 

 the young person’s health and wellbeing service delivered by Compass 

whose main based is in Catford but has outreach at a range of 

accessible locations across the borough. 

 

57. Unfortunately the Part of the Picture Briefing sheet for commissioners was 
unable to be located and therefore this response is based on a review of a 
range of other guidance and an assessment of the current provision 
against those standards. 

 
58. All services are commissioned to meet the needs of the LGBTQ 

community in Lewisham and meeting the needs of minority groups also 
take a priority in the Substance Misuse Treatment Plan 2018 – 2020, 
which aims to raise the awareness of LGBTQ service provision, improve 
pathways into specialist services and reduce harm from problematic 
substance misuse. CGL are Stonewall endorsed and are a Stonewall 
Diversity Champion and are also ranked in the Stonewall Workplace 
Equality Index. There are Diversity and Inclusion champions in each 

Page 30



 

 

service who are currently exploring the need for specific LGBTQ service 
user groups.  

 
59. All services work to LGBTQ specific guidance around service delivery as 

well as specific documents such as the Neptune Guidance/Research: Club 
Drug Use among Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual & Trans (LGBT) People (2016) 
and Public Health England (PHE) publications such as Promoting the 
health and wellbeing of gay, bisexual and other men who have sex with 
men (2015) and PHE Commissioning support packs which have guidance 
around LGBTQ engagement and chemsex support. 

 
60. To raise awareness of LGBTQ provision, commissioned services deliver 

Sexuality and Substance Misuse Training to Lewisham’s workforce with a 
focus on chemsex and referrals pathways i.e. Antidote/Metro and, where 
appropriate, The Havens. 

 
61. Services use London Friend and refer into Stonewall and other counselling 

services specific to LGBTQ individuals when needed and there are specific 
access points to services including 1-2-1 therapies, detox and rehab 
pathways. 

 

         Update on initial response – March 2019        
 

62. There are no further developments to report. 
 

Referral: Recommendation 13 
 

63. That the Mayor should ask the Council’s Public Health Team to carry out a 
review of LGBT facing sexual health services in the borough. This should 
include, where appropriate, focus groups with LGBT+ communities to 
ascertain why so many choose to access services out of Borough and to 
better understand their views of LB Lewisham commissioned health 
services in the borough. An action plan should be generated to help LB 
Lewisham and where appropriate NHS partners to improve services to 
better meet needs. 

 

      Initial response – July 2018     
 

64. The Public Health Team has, in response to a recent council motion, now 
completed a survey of residents (with specific reference to LGBT 
residents) accessing sexual health clinics in and outside the borough. The 
results are being analysed, and will contribute to the forthcoming sexual 
health strategy and JSNA. The survey invited respondents to attend a 
focus group and these are now being arranged. The findings from these 
focus groups will also inform the strategy and the future commissioning of 
services. 

 

Update on initial response- March 2019       
 

Page 31



 

 

65. Please refer to the progress made against recommendation 9. 
 
 

Referral: Recommendation 14  
 

66. That the Mayor and Council seek to support the LGBT+ Community by 
setting a clear Council aspiration for attracting and supporting LGBT+ 
services to the Borough and, where appropriate, protecting LGBT+ spaces 
through planning policies and other instruments available to it. Should 
appropriate LGBT+ operators come forward, the Council should give 
significant consideration to using community assets to enable the provision 
of an LGBT+ centric community space. 

 

Context: 
 

67. The Committee had concerns about the lack of spaces for the LGBT+ 
community, the closure of LGBT+ spaces in the Borough over recent 
years, and the impact and need for the provision of such spaces, for both 
adults and children. 

 

Initial response – July 2018 
 

68. The Planning Service are beginning the review of the Council’s Local Plan 
which will set out the aspirations for the development of the Borough and 
will seek to promote and control development, including appropriate uses, 
throughout the Borough.  Through this process, it will be possible to 
consider if and how LGBT+ venues can be supported and protected. 

 
69. The Cultural and Community Development Service work with all 

community groups to support the establishment of services in the borough 
and would welcome early discussions with appropriate LGBT+ operators 
to explore their needs and how best these might be met. 

 

     Update on initial response – March 2019 
 

70. There are no new developments to report. 
 

 
Referral: Recommendation 15 

 
71. That the following reports be reviewed by the Public Health Team and 

other key departments to evaluate whether findings can be incorporated 
into Council policy, and that of partner organisations: the DoH/Public 
Health England endorsed LGBT+ Public Health Outcomes Framework 
companion; The LGBT Adult Social Care Outcomes Framework 
Companion and Public Health England’s research on promoting the health 
and wellbeing of gay and bisexual men and other men who have sex with 
men (MSM). 

 

Page 32



 

 

Initial response – July 2018  
 

72. We will recommend that these reports and their implications for Lewisham 
should form a key evidence base for the JSNA. 

 

     Update on initial response – March 2019 
 

73. Please refer to the progress made against recommendation 9 

 
 
Referral: Recommendation 16 
 

74. When receiving reports on the Safer Lewisham Plan, the Committee 
request that a specific sub-report is included on hate crime statistics 
affecting the LGBT+ community as well as all other communities with 
protected characteristics. 

 

Context: 
 

75. The Committee understands that the LGBT+ community are 
disproportionately affected by crime compared to the population as a 
whole. 

 

Initial Response - July 2018  
 

76. The Council recognises the importance of this recommendation and where 
it can access the detailed data it will endeavour to provide this 
information.  

 

Update on initial response –March 2019 
 

77. The 2019/20 Safer Lewisham Plan is currently being drafted and will be 
seeking to access the data outlined in recommendation16, which will be 
included where possible. 
 

 Referral: Recommendation 17 
 

78. That the Council emulate good practice from Manchester City Council and 
Leicestershire County Council in respect to their excellent partnership 
working with other statutory service authorities, public bodies and 
universities. 

 

Context: 
 

79. Paragraph 9.21 if the report referenced where sharing expertise and 
resources was seen to be cost-effective and ensured a joined up approach 
to service delivery and a commitment to innovation and excellence. 

 

Page 33



 

 

Initial response – July 2018  
 

80. In an effort to improve the provision of services and performance of 
functions, the Council will take active steps to see what can learned from 
other organisations, including those mentioned in the recommendation. In 
addition to this, the Council will maintain its well established track record of 
sharing both good practice and good experience with others.  

 

 Update on initial response –March 2019 
 

81.  No new developments to report. 
 
 

Referral: Recommendation 18 
 

82. That the Council ensures its social care providers have a commitment to 
equalities including a specific LGBT+ Policy and that their staff have 
completed equalities training. The Council should look at ways it can assist 
signposting and embedding the Opening Doors London checklist for Social 
Care providers as a resource for providers who are unsure of how to 
improve provision. 

 

Context: 
 

83. Paragraph 10.24 of the Report reference that The Committee were 
concerned about the experience of some older members of the LGBT+ 
community accessing services and in care homes. 

 

Initial response – July 2018  
 

84. As part of its Quality Assurance of care service provision, the Council 
routinely reviews evidence of staff training, including equalities training 
which is a requirement under the ‘Skills for Care’ framework. As part of 
quality assurance, officers interview both front line staff and managers 
about their approach to and management of specific scenarios including 
equalities related scenarios. Officers and lay visitors or experts by 
experience talk to clients about their experience of care staff and also 
observe staff interaction with clients to ensure that they are treated in a 
sensitive and respectful manner at all times. The Council will agenda the 
Open Doors London Checklist at the next series of care provider forums or 
contract monitoring meetings and discuss with them how they might use 
the checklist to improve their support to this community.  

 

     Update on initial response – March 2019 
 

85. There are no developments to report.  

 
Referral: Recommendation 19 

Page 34



 

 

 
86. That the Strategic Housing Team and the Cabinet Member for Housing 

should progress the work with Tonic Housing to scrutinise the viability of 
an LGBT+ Extra Care facility, and if appropriate, support progressing the 
project. This should be considered in the context of ensuring groups are 
integrated well with the Lewisham Community. 

  

Context: 
 

87. Safer Stronger Communities Select Committee welcomed the idea of extra 
care housing facilities for the LGBT+ community given the concerns raised 
during evidence sessions and in recommendation 18. 

 
Initial response – July 2018 

 
88. Strategic Housing have been working with Tonic since the inception of 

their idea, supporting them in identifying possible sites in the borough. 
Strategic Housing have also worked with Tonic and the GLA to secure 
significant potential funding for the project. Officers are now working with 
them around a potential site and with the development of their care model 
with Adult Social Care and expect to be able to report further progress in 
the summer.  

 

   Update on initial response- March 2019    
 

89. Officers in Strategic Housing and Adult Social Care Joint Commissioners 
are working with Tonic to facilitate research into the housing and care 
needs of LGBT+ people across London, with some focus on Lewisham 
specifically. This research is due to be carried out by Opening Doors 
London and has already received funding from the GLA, with further bids 
for funding submitted. The research should start in April 2019.  

 
90. Officers in Strategic Housing are also still supporting Tonic to look at how 

an LGBT+ Older People’s housing scheme could be brought forward in 
Lewisham, in collaboration with the GLA. This project is still in its very 
early stages, and work is being conducted to look into the feasibility and 
viability of this scheme. The research mentioned above will feed into this 
work.  

 
 

 

Referral: Recommendation 20 
 

91. That the Council increase the awareness of the specific LGBT+ youth 
provision in the borough by requesting other commissioned youth work 
providers and schools regularly communicate details to their 
students/young people. The Council should encourage schools to reach 
out to the LGBT community to ensure their services are as robust an offer 
as possible. The Council should ensure it has a thorough understanding of 

Page 35



 

 

the distances young people are travelling to access LGBT youth groups in 
order to identify if distance of provision is a hidden barrier to access. The 
Council should work with LGBT young people and commissioned 
providers to ensure that the provision available is meeting their needs. 

 

Context: 
 

92. The Committee celebrated the fact that the Mayor and Lewisham Council 
continue to acknowledge the need for dedicated LGBT Youth Work 
provision and took a two-pronged approach to it through offering bespoke 
LGBT youth services in the borough and by ensuring an inclusive 
environment within other youth provisions. 

 

Initial response – July 2018  
 

93. The Executive Director for Children and Young People is committed to 
ensuring that all children and young people feel included and that the 
provision available to them meets their needs. 

  
94. Lewisham Learning also have a focus on ensuring that all pupil groups 

achieve to their potential. In May 2017 the Lewisham Governors 
Association hosted their annual conference with a theme of ‘inclusivity’. 
Mark Jennett (from promotingequality.com – author of NUT’s ‘Breaking the 
Mould’) helped governors from across the borough to understand more 
about a number of equality and diversity issues, focussing in particular on 
the role of schools in being inclusive of all LGBTQ young people. 
He prompted all governors to consider the language that we use and the 
environment and culture we create. Some schools have already worked 
with http://www.educateandcelebrate.org/ to develop their policy and 
practice. The Executive Director for CYP will continue to include 
information from partners about LGBT+ youth provision in the borough 
through our regular communications channels with schools. 

  
95. The Council, in partnership with Lewisham Learning, will continue to raise 

awareness with schools of equalities issues and will consider the benefits 
of the LA becoming a Stonewall diversity champion (subject to funding 
being identified see: https://www.stonewall.org.uk/get-involved/get-
involved-education/local-authorities/education-champions) and will explore 
and promote the benefits of schools becoming members of Stonewall’s 
Education Champions programme. 

  
96. Youth First, Lewisham Youth Services’ provider, commission and partner 

with METRO to provide a range of services related to LGBTQ+ youth. 
METRO provide 29 workshops per annum across Youth First’s and other 
partner’s universal delivery to help young people explore their identity in 
the most general sense, including a focus on gender and sexuality. 
Ensuring young people learn to create their own identity in a safe and non-
judgemental manner and learn how to accept and celebrate difference in 
others.  

  

Page 36

http://promotingequality.com/
http://www.educateandcelebrate.org/
https://www.stonewall.org.uk/get-involved/get-involved-education/local-authorities/education-champions
https://www.stonewall.org.uk/get-involved/get-involved-education/local-authorities/education-champions


 

 

97. Alongside this for young people who recognise as LGBTQ+, 
METRO  provide more targeted youth provision and support vi their weekly 
youth group, Live. At the direction of Youth First this group now operates in 
Deptford. METRO also delivers an under-16s group, which is funded with 
other commissioners and meets in Woolwich, but which Lewisham young 
people under 16 are able to attend and directed to. Additionally, some 
young people from Lewisham can and do access METRO’s other youth 
groups, e.g. Snap group in Bromley, Shine group in Greenwich. The 
choice is left up to the young people as to which they prefer.  

 
98. METRO also work with YF to ensure youth workers are provided with the 

training and support to offer early intervention and referral where required 
for issues relating to LGBTQ+ young people.   

 
99. Youth First’s SLA with METRO includes an expectation and support to 

promote these activities including in schools and colleges. With mail outs 
to all schools and colleges every 6 months and weekly reminders of 
activities to young people who request them. Alongside this both Youth 
First and METRO use social media and the web to promote activities 
noting that they do so careful to protect young people’s privacy. 

 
100. Additionally, METRO delivers an anti-homophobic, biphobic and 

transphobic bullying programme to schools across South London and 
Kent. This is funded through the Government Equalities Office and 
Department for Education and provides a free and comprehensive 
programme for primary and secondary schools. A total of 25 schools are 
signed up to this programme, and to date work has been delivered in the 
following Lewisham schools - Conisborough College, Coopers Lane 
Primary School, Prendergast Ladywell school, Prendergast school, 
Horniman Primary school. This work provides an additional avenue to 
promote the Live youth group to professionals in the Borough.   

 
101. We will however review our current promotions and seek to encourage 

all youth providers to help us promote and access this valuable resource. 
 

    Update on initial response – March 2019 
 

102. Live is a targeted youth club which takes place in the borough. The 
content of sessions are good and those attending have been given 
opportunities that include: input to a Lewisham report on mental health; 
workshops on STI’S; anxiety; relationships; coming out; social media and 
mental health; dating apps; Black History Month; World Aids Day and 
Pride flag design. Alongside this has been social activities such as games 
nights, film screenings (Paris is Burning, CH4’S Genderquake, Pose, Kids 
on the Edge.), outings to the cinema and Wicked the Musical, METRO’s 
Outing to Medway, a Summer BBQ and participation at London Pride. 
Participants who wanted have also been allocated one-to-ones on a 
weekly basis. This enables individual issues to be supported including 
support around alcohol misuse, study, relationships, rape and mental 

Page 37



 

 

health issues. Young people have also been referred to a variety of partner 
services, including contraception and sexual health services in Lewisham. 

 

103. The club is well publicised, both by Metro and Youth First (YF) through 
on and offline media, there is however a need to evolve and improve the 
provision in terms of the number of young people attending. YF would like 
to see an increase in overall reach and regular attendance above the 
current number. A full review will occur with Metro should funding for YF 
itself continue beyond August 31st 2019. Before this review a new 
promotional strategy, including the use of a dedicated twitter account, is 
being rolled out by Metro and YF.   

 

104. Metro led Workshops at Youth First’s open access settings - educating 
participants on how to safely explore identities and the importance of 
allowing others to do the same. This has occurred in eight Youth First run 
sites to date. The workshops have had mixed reviews and varying levels of 
participation and currently rely heavily on the involvement of YF’s own 
youth workers. Until August 31st a further four sessions are planned with 
the continuation of sessions beyond these to be reviewed in the context of 
young people’s feedback, data returns and the available funding post 
August 31st.  

 

105. Youth First staff themselves are regularly trained in providing support 
and education to young people around identity and LGBTQ+ issues. This 
includes how to signpost to more specialist support, including Metro, 
should this be requested/deemed useful.  

 
106. There is a dedicated support section of our website. This contains 

information around LGBTQ+ issues and is regularly updated, enhanced 
and promoted to young people. YF are currently working with multiple 
partners in Lewisham to further expand this as a dedicated Lewisham site 
for young people to seek information and support pathways both on and 
offline, including on LGBTQ+ topics.  

 

Referral: Recommendation 21 
 

107. That the Mayor should request further work be undertaken to better 
understand the specific experiences and needs of Lewisham’s Trans+ 
Community. 

 

Context: 
 

108. The committee noted the limited evidence that was available locally on 
Trans+ needs and issues and that further work should be undertaken to 
ensure the needs and services of Trans+ people were fully met. 

 

Initial response – July 2018 
 

Page 38



 

 

109. Under the auspices of the Council’s Corporate Equalities Board, 
research on the Trans community was undertaken, by officers, in 2011. 
This will be revisited, updated and used to inform service planning and 
community engagement. 

 

Update on initial response – March 2019 
 

110. A piece of research will be commissioned by the Corporate Equalities 
Board in the summer of 2019. The intention is that it will coincide with the 
development of the Comprehensive Equalities Scheme 2020-24.  

 
 
 

Financial Implications  
 

111. There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. 
However, if any of these recommendations are agreed and taken forward, 
there could be direct financial implications arising out of this report. 

 
112. As a case in point, if the Council wishes to deliver outcomes similar to 

the benchmark of Leicestershire County Council, then Lewisham would 
need to employee an Equalities Officer. It is anticipated that this would be 
at least a P03 grade post, at a cost of £54,283. 

 
Legal Implications  
 

113. The Constitution provides for Select Committees to refer reports to the 
Mayor and Cabinet, who are obliged to consider the report and the 
proposed response from the relevant Executive Director; and report back 
to the Committee within two months (not including recess).  

 
114. The Equality Act 2010 (the Act) introduced a public sector equality duty 

(the equality duty or the duty).  It covers the following protected 
characteristics: age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil 
partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and 
sexual orientation. 

 
115. With reference to paragraph 27 of this Report, there remains in place 

an existing system for such appointments to be made by the Mayor.  
 

116. In summary, the Council must, in the exercise of its functions, have due 
regard to the need to: 

 

 eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and 
other conduct prohibited by the Act. 

 advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected 
characteristic and those who do not. 

 foster good relations between people who share a protected 
characteristic and those who do not. 

Page 39



 

 

 
117. It is not an absolute requirement to eliminate unlawful discrimination, 

harassment, victimisation or other prohibited conduct, or to promote 
equality of opportunity or foster good relations between persons who share 
a protected characteristic and those who do not. It is a duty to have due 
regard to the need to achieve the goals listed above.  

 
118. The weight to be attached to the duty will be dependent on the nature 

of the decision and the circumstances in which it is made. This is a matter 
for the Mayor, bearing in mind the issues of relevance and proportionality. 
The Mayor must understand the impact or likely impact of the decision on 
those with protected characteristics who are potentially affected by the 
decision. The extent of the duty will necessarily vary from case to case and 
due regard is such regard as is appropriate in all the circumstances. 

 
119. The Equality and Human Rights Commission has issued Technical 

Guidance on the Public Sector Equality Duty and statutory guidance 
entitled “Equality Act 2010 Services, Public Functions & Associations 
Statutory Code of Practice”. The Council must have regard to the statutory 
code in so far as it relates to the duty and attention is drawn to Chapter 11 
which deals particularly with the equality duty. The Technical Guidance 
also covers what public authorities should do to meet the duty. This 
includes steps that are legally required, as well as recommended actions. 
The guidance does not have statutory force but nonetheless regard should 
be had to it, as failure to do so without compelling reason would be of 
evidential value. The statutory code and the technical guidance can be 
found at: https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/advice-and-
guidance/equality-act-codes-practice 

 
https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/advice-and-guidance/equality-act-
technical-guidance  
 

120. The Equality and Human Rights Commission (EHRC) has previously 
issued five guides for public authorities in England giving advice on the 
equality duty:  

 The essential guide to the public sector equality duty 
 Meeting the equality duty in policy and decision-making 
 Engagement and the equality duty: A guide for public authorities 
 Objectives and the equality duty. A guide for public authorities 
 Equality Information and the Equality Duty: A Guide for Public Authorities 

 
121. The essential guide provides an overview of the equality duty 

requirements including the general equality duty, the specific duties and 
who they apply to. It covers what public authorities should do to meet the 
duty including steps that are legally required, as well as recommended 
actions. The other four documents provide more detailed guidance on key 
areas and advice on good practice. Further information and resources are 
available at:  

Page 40

https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/advice-and-guidance/equality-act-codes-practice
https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/advice-and-guidance/equality-act-codes-practice
https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/advice-and-guidance/equality-act-technical-guidance
https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/advice-and-guidance/equality-act-technical-guidance
https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/node/691
https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/node/562
https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/node/820
https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/node/1461
https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/node/838


 

 

https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/advice-and-guidance/public-sector-
equality-duty-guidance#h1 

 

 
 
 
Equalities Implications  
 

122. The Council works to eliminate unlawful discrimination and 
harassment, promote equality of opportunity and good relations between 
different groups in the community and recognise and take account of 
people’s differences.  

 

 
Crime and Disorder/Environmental implications  
 

123. Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1988, as amended, places a 
duty upon Local Authorities to consider crime and disorder implications 
and in particular, “to exercise its various functions with due regard to the 
likely effect of the exercise of those functions on, and the need to do all 
that it reasonably can to prevent, crime and disorder in its area.” This 
statutory obligation is the same for the Authorities “responsible partners” 
too. The level of crime and its impact is influenced by the decisions and 
activities taken through the day-to-day functions of local bodies and 
organisations. 

 

 
Background papers  
 
Provision for the LGBT+ Community in Lewisham  
Safer Stronger Communities Select Committee  
December 2017 
https://www.lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/overview-scrutiny/Overview-and-
Scrutiny-Reports/Documents/LGBTProvisioninLewishamMandC140218.pdf 

 
 
 
 
Report compiled by: Paul Aladenika, Policy and Governance Division 
Email: Paul.Aladenika@lewisham.gov.uk  
Telephone: 020 8314 7148 
 
 

Page 41

https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/advice-and-guidance/public-sector-equality-duty-guidance#h1
https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/advice-and-guidance/public-sector-equality-duty-guidance#h1
https://www.lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/overview-scrutiny/Overview-and-Scrutiny-Reports/Documents/LGBTProvisioninLewishamMandC140218.pdf
https://www.lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/overview-scrutiny/Overview-and-Scrutiny-Reports/Documents/LGBTProvisioninLewishamMandC140218.pdf
mailto:Paul.Aladenika@lewisham.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 
Safer Stronger Communities Select Committee 

Report Title  Comprehensive Equalities Scheme (CES) Annual Review 2018  

Contributors  Executive Director for Resources and 
Regeneration 

Item 5 

Class  Part 1 (Open) Date 12 March 2019 

 
 

Introduction 
 

1. This report provides an illustrative summary of progress against the five 
objectives in the Council’s Comprehensive Equalities Scheme (CES) 
2016-20. This is the second such report on the 2016-20 CES. 
 

2. The above-mentioned summary which is attached as an Appendix, also 
includes a contextual summary of demographics in Lewisham and 
highlights some of the emerging challenges for the borough as it relates to 
equalities. 

 
Recommendations 
 

i) The Committee is invited to note the contents of this report and the 
attached appendices. 

 

Background and Policy Context  
 

3. The Equality Act of 2010 took existing equality legislation into a single statute 
and extended coverage to include a broader range of protected groups than 
were acknowledged previously. The nine characteristics given protection 
under the Equality Act are:  age, disability, gender, gender re-assignment, 
marriage, pregnancy & maternity, race, religion & belief and sexual 
orientation.  

 
4. In respect of these protected characteristics, the Equality Act places a 

General Duty on public bodies to have due regard to the need to: 
 

 eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other 
conduct that is prohibited under this Act; 

 advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a protected 
characteristic and those who do not share it; 

 foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and those who do not share it. 

 
5. The Act identifies the following as protected characteristics: 

 
 Age 
 Disability 
 Ethnicity 

Page 43

Agenda Item 5

http://www.lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/aboutthecouncil/strategies/Documents/Comprehensive%20Equalities%20Scheme%202016%e2%80%9320.pdf
http://www.lewisham.gov.uk/mayorandcouncil/aboutthecouncil/strategies/Documents/Comprehensive%20Equalities%20Scheme%202016%e2%80%9320.pdf


 

 

 Gender 
 Gender re-assignment 
 Pregnancy and maternity 
 Marriage 
 Religion or belief 
 Sexual orientation 
 

6. The Specific Duties of the Equality Act also provide that public bodies 
have a statutory duty to publish equality objectives setting out how they 
will comply with the General Duty. These objectives are required to be in 
place for four years.  
 

Comprehensive equalities scheme 2016-20 
 

7. Lewisham’s CES 2016-20 sits within the wider framework of the Council’s 
Corporate Strategy. The Corporate Strategy priorities are as follows: 

 
• open Lewisham  
• tackling the housing crisis  
• giving children and young people the best start in life  
• building an inclusive local economy  
• delivering and defending: health, social care and support  
• making Lewisham greener  
• building safer communities 

 

8. The objectives of Lewisham’s CES are to: 
 

• tackle victimisation, harassment and discrimination 
• improve access to services 
• close the gap in outcomes for our citizens 
• increase understanding and mutual respect between communities 
• increase participation and engagement 

 
9. The five objectives above, which cover the Council’s role as both an employer 

and service provider, are deliberately high-level in as much as the intention is 
to ensure that every protected characteristic can recognise themselves within 
these aspirations. 
 

10. In framing these objectives, the Council is also looking to develop a more 
sophisticated approach to equalities reporting. As part of this, the CES 2016-
20 recognises a wider set of equality issues such as worklessness, low pay, 
living standards as well as health & wellbeing. 

 
Overview of annual review 
 

11. This report summarises the equality impact of five strategic plans, which 
the Council oversees by itself or in partnership with other organisations. 
These plans are as follows: 
 
 A Safe Lewisham Plan 2018-19 
 Housing Strategy 2015-20 

Page 44



 

 

 Work & Skills Strategy 2015-17 
 Health & Well-being Strategy 2015-18 
 Children & Young People’s Plan 2015-18 

 
12. This new approach to progress reporting on the CES was proposed to the 

Safer Stronger Communities Select Committee in October 2015 and 
approved by the Mayor in March 2016. The intention is to show how a 
wide range of strategic plans contribute to the Council’s five equality 
objectives set out above. 
 

13. The information contained in this report is not exhaustive, nor is it meant to 
be, as oversight for implementation and improvement planning regarding 
the above-mentioned strategies is reported through individual scrutiny 
select committees. Instead, the information provided to Safer, Stronger 
Communities Select Committee is illustrative of context, activity and 
impacts, from the perspective of protected characteristics, where known.  

 
14. Information related to the above is set out below, with supplementary 

detail at the attached Appendix.  

 
Borough demography 
 
15. Lewisham is a borough of some 301,300 residents. Since the last Census 

in 2011, the borough’s population has increased by nearly 25,000. 
According to official forecasts, Lewisham’s population is expected to reach 
some 319,000 by the time of the 2021 Census and 345,000 by the Census 
in 2031. In terms of demographic characteristics of the borough, more than 
a quarter of residents are children and young people aged 0-19, whilst one 
in ten are older residents aged 65 plus. 
 

16. Some 70 per cent of Lewisham residents (above the average for London 
and England) are aged between 16 and 64 (of working age) and nearly 16 
per cent of residents describe themselves as living with a long term 
condition (a proxy measure for disability). 
 

17. In terms of ethnicity, some 54 per cent of residents describe themselves 
as White, whilst 46 percent are of Black and Minority Ethnic (BME) 
heritage (compared to 66 per cent White and 34 per cent BME heritage at 
the time of the 2001 Census). Residents of more than 70 different 
nationalities make their home in the borough.  

 

18. There is no official data on the proportion of Lewisham residents who 
describe themselves as LGB or those who identify as Transgender. 
However, for the 2014 Lewisham Residents Survey, some 4 per cent of 
survey respondents identified themselves as LGB. 

 
 
 
 
Summary of Annual Review  
 

Page 45



 

 

19. The Annual Review of the CES provides an opportunity for the Council to 
reflect on work undertaken during the course of the year to deliver on the 
Council’s equality objectives. The prism for assessing the impact of this 
work are the five high-level strategies which are set out above. A snapshot 
and progress and issues arising, over the 2018 reporting period, are set 
out below:  
 
• Lewisham in one of only 3 London Boroughs that saw a reduction in 

Violence in the period Dec 17 - Nov 18 compared with the previous 
year (-5%) 

• Reported incidents of disability hate crime increased in 2018, 
compared to 2017 

• Levels of reported racist and religious hate crime have remained 
relatively consistent, however, whilst Islamophobic hate crime recorded 
incidents have decreased by more than 35% reported incidents of anti-
Semitic hate crime have increased marginally. 

• Reported incidents of homophobic hate crime are down marginally on 
the year, whilst reported transgender hate crime is also down 
marginally. 

• Proportion of children not in education training or employment is below 
target; 

• Number of families where homelessness was prevented has exceeded 
its target; 

• Proportion of Lewisham children achieving a Good Level of 
Development (early years) continues to be amongst the best in the 
country; 

• Breast feeding initiation at 6-8 weeks is amongst the highest in the 
country; 

• Secondary schools are improving but are still at the bottom of the 
London tables.  

• Our local NHS Health Check programme has good representation in 
terms of uptake by gender and ethnicity. This is particularly relevant as 
some BME communities are at higher risk of the illnesses that the NHS 
Health Check programme is working to prevent e.g. cardiovascular 
disease. 

• Smoking at time of delivery figures in Lewisham compare well 
nationally and the whole systems training outlined above could support 
these figures to improve further.  

 
20. Additional detail is set out in the end of year review summary, which is 

attached to this report as a supplementary Appendix.  

 
Preparation for the 2020-24 scheme 
 

21. Preparation has already begun on the development of the 2020-24 CES. 
Set out under the sub-headers below are a summary of key reviews that 
will be taking place as part of the development process.  
 

a. existing objectives 
 

Page 46



 

 

22. The five objectives for the current CES have been in place since the 
inception of the Scheme in 2012. At the time of their adoption they were 
seen as enduring and were therefore adopted again in 2016. The 
development of the next iteration of the Scheme provides the new 
administration and key stakeholders the opportunity to review the 
objectives for the next four years. As part of this process, there will be 
opportunities to dovetail and draw learning from existing programmes of 
work such as the Democracy Review.  
 

b. data gathering 
 

23. The availability and quality of data is crucial to the development of the 
CES and assessing its impact. The challenge that the Council faces in this 
regard is that, for the most part, service users do not share their data and 
the Council does not always make a compelling argument for service 
users to do so. As such, it is understood that going forward the approach 
to equality data monitoring must be significantly strengthened.   

 
c. delivery mechanisms 
 

24. Over the past four years, evidence of the impact of the CES has been tied 
to five high-level strategies. The rationale for this is because it provides the 
most effective way to demonstrate the extent to which equalities is 
embedded in decision-making and business systems of the organisation. 
The proposition, over the next four years, is to explore ways in which this 
approach can be further strengthened.   
 

d. end of year reporting  
 

25. Currently end of year reporting to the Safer, Stronger Communities 
Scrutiny Committee on the CES is focused around five key strategies. 
However, going forward, it is considered that other information that may be 
of interest to the Committee such as a summary of equalities analysis 
assessments and any analysis of public engagement in major public 
consultations.    

 

Legal implications 
 

26. The Equality Act 2010 (the Act) introduced a new public sector equality 
duty (the equality duty or the duty).  It covers the following nine protected 
characteristics: age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil 
partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and 
sexual orientation. 

 
27. In summary, the Council must, in the exercise of its functions, have due 

regard to the need to: 
 

 eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and 
other conduct prohibited by the Act. 

 advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected 
characteristic and those who do not. 

Page 47



 

 

 foster good relations between people who share a protected 
characteristic and those who do not. 

 
28. The duty continues to be a “have regard duty”, and the weight to be 

attached to it is a matter for the Mayor, bearing in mind the issues of 
relevance and proportionality. It is not an absolute requirement to eliminate 
unlawful discrimination, advance equality of opportunity or foster good 
relations. 

 
29. The Equality and Human Rights Commission has issued Technical 

Guidance on the Public Sector Equality Duty and statutory guidance 
entitled “Equality Act 2010 Services, Public Functions & Associations 
Statutory Code of Practice”.  The Council must have regard to the 
statutory code in so far as it relates to the duty and attention is drawn to 
Chapter 11 which deals particularly with the equality duty. The Technical 
Guidance also covers what public authorities should do to meet the duty. 
This includes steps that are legally required, as well as recommended 
actions. The guidance does not have statutory force but nonetheless 
regard should be had to it, as failure to do so without compelling reason 
would be of evidential value. The statutory code and the technical 
guidance can be found at http://www.equalityhumanrights.com/legal-and-
policy/equality-act/equality-act-codes-of-practice-and-technical-guidance/ 

 
30. The Equality and Human Rights Commission (EHRC) has previously 

issued five guides for public authorities in England giving advice on the 
equality duty:  

 
 1. The essential guide to the public sector equality duty 
 2. Meeting the equality duty in policy and decision-making  

    3. Engagement and the equality duty 
    4. Equality objectives and the equality duty 

        5. Equality information and the equality duty 
 

31. The essential guide provides an overview of the equality duty 
requirements including the general equality duty, the specific duties and 
who they apply to. It covers what public authorities should do to meet the 
duty including steps that are legally required, as well as recommended 
actions. The other four documents provide more detailed guidance on key 
areas and advice on good practice. Further information and resources are 
available at: http://www.equalityhumanrights.com/advice-and-
guidance/public-sector- equality-duty/guidance-on-the-equality-duty/ 

 

Financial Implications 
 

32. There are no specific financial implications arising from this report. 

 
Environmental Implications 
 

33. There are no specific environmental implications arising from this report. 

 
Equalities Implications 

Page 48

http://www.equalityhumanrights.com/legal-and-policy/equality-act/equality-act-codes-of-practice-and-technical-guidance/
http://www.equalityhumanrights.com/legal-and-policy/equality-act/equality-act-codes-of-practice-and-technical-guidance/
http://www.equalityhumanrights.com/advice-and-guidance/public-sector-equality-duty/guidance-on-the-equality-duty/
http://www.equalityhumanrights.com/advice-and-guidance/public-sector-equality-duty/guidance-on-the-equality-duty/


 

 

 

34. The Annual Review of the CES has high relevance to equality and 
diversity. The CES sets out the Council’s five equality objectives and the 
Annual Review highlights the impact of various high-level strategies upon 
these objectives. 
 

35. The Council’s Fairness in Pay and Employment Report is prepared 
annually and presented to the Public Accounts Select Committee. It 
considers the profile of Council staff across the 9 protected characteristics.  

 
Crime and Disorder Implications 
 

36. Improving service design and delivery to achieve equality of outcomes for 
local people, (while promoting good relations between different groups in 
the community) will have a positive impact on matters such as community 
safety, crime and disorder, and community cohesion. 

 
 
 
 
 

Author Paul Aladenika 

Designation Service Group Manager, Policy Development 

Directorate Resources 

Contacts 020 8314 714 

 
Supplementary Documents 

Corporate Strategy  2018-22 

Comprehensive Equalities Scheme 2016-2020 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 49



 

 

Appendix A: Snapshot of Equality Reports Presented for Members Scrutiny  
Committee Report Impact on relevant CES priority 

Children & Young People’s   Childcare Strategy Update - including increased provision for 3 
year olds  

 Looked After Children Annual Report   
 Child Sexual Exploitation Update  
 Human Trafficking 
 Safeguarding Services 6-monthly report  
 Lewisham Safeguarding Children Board annual report  
 Mental Health and Wellbeing in Schools 
 SEND update on transport and short breaks  

 Close the gap in outcomes for all citizens 
 Tackle victimisation, discrimination and 

harassment 
 Improve access to services 

Healthier Communities  HealthWatch annual report 
 Transition from children's to adult social care  
 Leisure Contracts Update 
 Social prescribing in-depth review 

 Improve access to services 
 Close the gap in outcomes for all citizens 
 Increase mutual respect within and between 

communities 

Housing  New Homes Programme  
 Lewisham Housing Strategy 
 Homelessness and temporary accommodation pressures 

 Improve access to services 
 

Public Accounts  Social care budgets 
 Household budgets 

 Improve access to services 
 

Safer Stronger Communities  Demographics In Lewisham  
 Draft Violence Against Women and Girls Strategy 
 Poverty Commission Update  
 Council's Employment Profile  
 Local Police Service Update  
 Lewisham Poverty Commission - Final Report 
 Community Cohesion (including extremism strategy)  
 Safer Lewisham Plan  
 LGBT+ Provision in Lewisham - Draft Report  

 Tackle victimisation, discrimination and 
harassment 

 Increase mutual respect within and between 
communities 

 Close the gap in outcomes for all citizens 
 Promote participation and engagement 
 Improving access to services 

 

Sustainable Development  Implementation of the air quality action plan   Close the gap in outcomes for all citizens 

 

P
age 50

http://councilmeetings.lewisham.gov.uk/documents/s52115/05%20Healthwatch%20annual%20report%20-%20120917.pdf
http://councilmeetings.lewisham.gov.uk/documents/s53953/06%20transition%20from%20childrens%20to%20adult%20services%20-%20061217.pdf
http://councilmeetings.lewisham.gov.uk/documents/s52489/04%20Adult%20social%20care%20budget%20270917.pdf
http://councilmeetings.lewisham.gov.uk/documents/s52359/06SaferLewishamPlan2017-18--6MonthUpdate.pdf


 

 

Appendix B: Charts and Graphs 
 

 

P
age 51



 

 

 
 

P
age 52



 

 

 
 

 

P
age 53



 

 

 
 

P
age 54



 

 

 

P
age 55



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Comprehensive Equalities 
Scheme 

Annual Review 2018

Appendix

P
age 57



Introduction

 Set out the equalities context in Lewisham
 Summarises progress against Comprehensive Equalities Scheme 

objectives 
 Provide opportunity to consider emerging themes which impact upon 

equalities in Lewisham
 Set out broader approach to developing the Comprehensive 

Equalities Scheme 2020-24 

P
age 58



Lewisham’s 

population is driven by 

natural change [the 

difference between 

births and deaths].

167
languages are 

spoken by pupils 

attending Lewisham 

schools.

301,300

Lewisham is home to some

residents

Nearly 

three in 

ten

Lewisham 

residents are 

older adults 

aged 65 plus

There are 

133,000 
households in the borough.

Lewisham residents 

is a child or young 

person aged 0-19.

One in four

Lewisham has one of the 

highest concentrations 

of small businesses in 

the country.

Lewisham is home to 

residents from more 

than 70 nationalities 

and five continents.

77

78

79

80

81

82

83

84

Male Female

79.1

Average life expectancy in 

Lewisham is 79.1 years for males 

and 83.1 years for females.

7
0

83.1

P
age 59



32.7%
of residents aged 

16+ are married

(2011 Census, ONS)

14.5%

of residents are living 

with long-term 

conditions (a proxy 

measure for disability)

(2011 Census, ONS)

46%
[2011 Census 

ONS]

64%
(2011 Census, ONS)

54%
(2011 Census, ONS)

25.2%

of residents 

identify as 

having a faith

of residents 

are White

of residents 

are of black 

and ethnic 

minority 

heritage

9.5%

51%
(2011 Census

ONS])

of residents 

are men49%
(2011 Census

ONS])

of residents
are women

borough demographics

of residents are 

aged 0-19

(2011 Census, ONS)

of residents are 

aged 65+

(2011 Census, ONS)

301,300

residents
(MYE  2016, ONS)

34.2%

65.8%

69.6%

35.9%

15.6%

53.6%

46.4%

11%

25.7%

Note: percentages outside the bubbles are 
from the 2001 CensusP

age 60



Source: Lewisham Electoral Roll 2017

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

4000

Citizens of EU Member States Living in Lewisham 

Lewisham’s Electoral Roll is 

comprised of

23,500 citizens of EU member states. 

Just over 50% of EU citizens living in 

Lewisham are from just five 

nationalities: Irish, Italian, Polish and 

French and Spanish.

P
age 61

https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwjKwYb6-JzWAhVEWhQKHW1FArEQjRwIBw&url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.shutterstock.com%2Fvideo%2Fclip-6631529-stock-footage-realistic-ultra-hd-flag-of-the-european-union-waving-in-the-wind-seamless-loop-with-highly.html%3Fsrc%3Drel%2F1122124%3A9&psig=AFQjCNHrqGLNvRPYvP95zdWbGjTYZvVR3A&ust=1505212842437444
https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwjKwYb6-JzWAhVEWhQKHW1FArEQjRwIBw&url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.shutterstock.com%2Fvideo%2Fclip-6631529-stock-footage-realistic-ultra-hd-flag-of-the-european-union-waving-in-the-wind-seamless-loop-with-highly.html%3Fsrc%3Drel%2F1122124%3A9&psig=AFQjCNHrqGLNvRPYvP95zdWbGjTYZvVR3A&ust=1505212842437444


Legend

Quantiles Low (>=) (<) High Occurrences

1 6 8 (12)

2 8 9 (1)

3 9 11 (2)

4 11 12 (1)

5 12 13 (2)

Ref Ward Name

EU Nationals 

on Electoral 

Roll

Population 

(Census 2011) % EU 

1 Bellingham 937 14,775 6.3

2 Blackheath 1,188 14,039 8.5

3 Brockley 1,724 17,156 10.0

4 Catford South
1,026 15,214 6.7

5 Crofton Park
1,072 14,937 7.2

6 Downham 1,126 14,567 7.7

7 Evelyn 2,094 16,603 12.6

8 Forest Hill 1,118 14,854 7.5

9 Grove Park 1,067 14,648 7.3

10 Ladywell 1,018 14,515 7.0

11 Lee Green 1,127 14,573 7.7

12 Lewisham Central
2,331 17,446 13.4

13 New Cross 1,765 15,756 11.2

14 Perry Vale 1,017 15,618 6.5

15 Rushey Green
1,398 14,916 9.4

16 Sydenham 1,190 15,605 7.6

17 Telegraph Hill
1,211 16,414 7.4

18 Whitefoot 967 14,249 6.8

Total 23,376 275,885 8.5

The map and table below show that there is a higher percentage of EU nationality residents in wards in the north 
of the borough. The borough comprised of the highest percentage of EU residents Lewisham central at 13.4%, followed 
by Evelyn and New Cross at 12.6% and 11.2% respectively. Three in ten EU citizens living in Lewisham, reside in either 

Lewisham Central, Evelyn or New Cross. Bellingham has the lowest percentage of EU citizens as residents at 6.3%.

P
age 62



The Equality Act 2010

Public bodies must have due regard to the 
need to:

 Eliminate unlawful discrimination, 
harassment and victimisation and 
other conduct prohibited by the Act;

 Advance equality of opportunity 
between those who share a protected 
characteristic and those who do not 

 Foster good relations between those 
who share a protected characteristic 
and those who do not

Characteristics protected under the Act:

 Age
 Disability
 Ethnicity
 Gender re-assignment
 Marriage/ civil partnership
 Pregnancy and maternity
 Religion or belief
 Sex
 Sexual orientation

P
age 63



Open Lewisham

Tackling the 

housing crisis

Giving children 

and young people 

the best start in life

Building an 

inclusive local 

economy

Delivering and 

defending health, 

social care and 

support

Making Lewisham 

greener

Building safer

communities

P
o

l
i
c
y
 
P

r
i
o

r
i
t
i
e

s

P
age 64



Comprehensive Equalities 
Scheme Priorities

 Tackling victimisation, discrimination and harassment
 Improving access to services 
 Closing the gap in outcomes for citizens
 Increasing mutual respect and understanding between communities
 Increasing participation and engagement

 Safeguard residents from mischief, disadvantage and harm
 Promote equity and fairness
 Promote community harmony and social cohesion
 Empower individuals and communities to do their best for themselves 

and others

P
age 65



Framework  

 Health and Wellbeing Strategy
 Children and Young People’s Plan
 Work and Skills Strategy
 Safer Lewisham Plan
 Housing Strategy

P
age 66



Health and Wellbeing

Action
 Whole systems stop smoking training has been 

commissioned for midwives, health visitors and other 
maternity staff to improve referrals and uptake of stop 
smoking services by pregnant women who smoke. 
Routine carbon monoxide monitoring for all pregnant 
women has also been promoted as part of this 
training.

 Lewisham Council has committed funding to develop 
four Neighbourhood Community Development 
Partnerships (NCDPs) in each quadrant of the borough. 
The partnerships consist of voluntary and community 
sector organisations and statutory agencies working 
together to deliver localised solutions to the 
neighbourhoods’ community-level health and 
wellbeing priorities.

 Lewisham’s Health and Wellbeing Board made 
addressing Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic (BAME) 
health inequalities a key priority in 2018. A programme 
of work is currently being co-produced with the 
Lewisham BME Network and partners to address 
BAME inequalities in mental health and was kick-
started by a BAME mental health summit in October 
2018.

 The RISE partnership is commissioned in Lewisham to 
increase awareness of testing and treatment of HIV in 
particular at risk communities.

Health & Wellbeing Facts
 Average life expectancy for men is 79.1 

years and 83.1 years for women;
 Life expectancy is 5.8 years lower for 

men and 3.4 years lower for women in 
the most deprived areas of Lewisham 
than in the least deprived areas;

 Lewisham performs significantly better 
than the national average in respect of: 
hip fractures in older people, suicide 
rate, hospitals stays due to alcohol, 
breast-feeding initiation and smoking 
status at time of delivery;

 Lewisham performs significantly worse 
than the national average as it relates 
to: under 75 all cause mortality, 
diabetes diagnosis, obese children 
aged 10-11, new sexually transmitted 
infections

P
age 67



Health and Wellbeing

Progress
 Smoking at time of delivery figures in Lewisham 

compare well nationally and the whole systems 
training outlined above could support these figures to 
improve further.

 In 2017-2018, 170 community groups came together as 
part of the NCDPs to deliver projects ranging from 
increasing social opportunities for older people to IT 
training programmes and cookery classes. The 
evidence gathered through quarterly reports shows 
the success of each NCDP in cooperatively bringing 
together local groups to engage communities and 
improve health and wellbeing.

 Our local NHS Health Check programme has good 
representation in terms of uptake by gender and 
ethnicity. This is particularly relevant as some BME 
communities are at higher risk of the illnesses that the 
NHS Health Check programme is working to prevent 
e.g. cardiovascular disease.

 National Child Measurement Programme (NCMP) data 
has shown a reduction in the prevalence of excess 
weight in primary school (reception year) aged 
children (4-5 years) in Lewisham for 2017/18 (from 22.2% to 
17.6%). Lewisham being a Whole Systems approach to 
obesity pilot may have contributed to this achievement, 
but further trend data is required to provide evidence 
for this.

Health & Wellbeing Facts
 Average life expectancy for men is 79.1 

years and 83.1 years for women;
 Life expectancy is 5.8 years lower for 

men and 3.4 years lower for women in 
the most deprived areas of Lewisham 
than in the least deprived areas;

 Lewisham performs significantly better 
than the national average in respect of: 
hip fractures in older people, suicide 
rate, hospitals stays due to alcohol, 
breast-feeding initiation and smoking 
status at time of delivery;

 Lewisham performs significantly worse 
than the national average as it relates 
to: under 75 all cause mortality, 
diabetes diagnosis, obese children 
aged 10-11, new sexually transmitted 
infections

P
age 68



Children and Young People’s Plan

Action
 Establishment of a strategic board, chaired by a Cabinet 

Member, to lead and drive forward work on children’s 
social care improvement;

 New Children & Young People’s Plan developed;
 All funding streams are being utilised including income 

generated from schools, Dedicated Schools Grant and 
council funds. Partnership working with Lewisham 
Learning has generated an additional £750k over 2 years 
to support secondary school improvement and at least 5 
other bids are in development.

Progress
 Proportion of children not in education training or 

employment is below target;
 Number of families where homelessness was prevented 

has exceeded its target;
 Proportion of Lewisham children achieving a Good 

Level of Development (early years) continues to be 
amongst the best in the country;

 Breast feeding initiation at 6-8 weeks is amongst the 
highest in the country;

 One third of primary schools are rated Ofsted 
‘Outstanding’ but primary school performance is at 
national average;

 Secondary schools are improving but are still at the 
bottom of the London tables. 

Children & Young People Facts
 Population growth in Lewisham is 

driven largely by the birth rate;
 One in four Lewisham residents is a 

child aged 0-19;
 Some 91,000 pupils attend Lewisham 

schools;
 About three in four pupils attending 

Lewisham schools are of BAME origin;
 Some three in ten Lewisham children 

live in poverty;
 More income deprived children live in 

Evelyn ward than Blackheath, Lee 
Green and Crofton Park wards 
combined

P
age 69



Progress
 The Council is currently ahead of its target to double the 

number of Living Wage employers in the borough
 The Council is on track to expand its business growth 

programmes to reach 300 small businesses by 2020
 The Council has been successful in its bids for funding 

that will lead to the creation of enterprise hubs. We 
therefore have every expectation that we will create 
more enterprise hubs over the life of the current 
manifesto

Work and Skills

Action
 A comprehensive work programme is in place to increase 

the number of Living Wage accredited businesses
 Apprenticeships - We are continuing to work with our 

strategic partners to create more apprenticeship 
opportunities in their organisations and supply chain.

 The Inward Investment Programme was  presented to 
Mayor and Cabinet on 12th December and sets out the 
work we are doing to create more enterprise hubs

 Business Growth - a review of the processes for 
supporting businesses from the point they register with 
the DeK Growth Programme right through to when they 
complete their support package has been completed. This 
has resulted in a much smoother process for our clients

Work and Skills Facts
 211,000 Lewisham residents (70% of the 

population) are of working age
 85% of the working age population are 

economically active (above the London 
and national averages)

 81% of Lewisham residents who are 
economically active are in employment 
(above the London and national 
averages)

 Nearly 11% of Lewisham households are 
workless (below the London and 
national averages)

P
age 70



Safer Lewisham

Action
 Manifesto pledge in place to adopt a Public Health approach 

to tackling violence in Lewisham and public consultation on 
this is underway.

 Safer Lewisham Knife Crime Action Plan in place.
 Violence Against Women & Girls Plan 2017-21 in place. Athena 

(VAWG) Service for DA victims currently being reviewed. 
New Lewisham DA perpetrator programme in place. In depth 
reviews into Domestic Abuse and Domestic Abuse involving 
knife crime have been undertaken. 

 The Council, Police, Community representatives and other 
stakeholders meet regularly to review the hate crime action 
plan. Lewisham’s 3rd Party Hate Crime reporting sites 
programme reviewed and expanded and annual Hate Crime 
Awareness Week activity is well established in the Borough. 

Progress
 Lewisham in one of only 3 London Boroughs that saw a 

reduction in Violence in the period Dec 17 - Nov 18 compared 
with the previous year (-.5%)

 Domestic Abuse incidents recorded in Lewisham increased by 
12% in the period Dec 17 – Nov 2018 compared with the 
previous year.

 Reported incidents of disability hate crime increased in 2018, 
compared to 2017

 Levels of reported racist and religious hate crime have 
remained relatively consistent, however, whilst Islamophobic
hate crime recorded incidents have decreased by more that 
35%, reported incidents of anti-Semitic hate crime have 
increased marginally.

 Reported incidents of homophobic hate crime are down 
marginally on the year, whilst reported transgender hate 
crime is also down marginally.

Safer Lewisham Facts
 There were 25,783 incidents of crime 

recorded in Lewisham between Nov 2017 
and December 2018. This is a 3% increase 
on the previous year. 

 79% of victims of non-domestic related 
knife crime (Oct 17- Sep18) were male, 
53% of all victims were aged (0-24) and 
49% of all victims were from a BAME 
background.

 54% of victims of domestic related knife 
crime (Oct 17- Sep18) were female, 72% of 
all victims were aged (25-49) and 57% of 
all victims were from a BAME 
background.

 There were 516 recorded incidents of 
Hate Crime in Lewisham from Nov 2017 
to Dec 2018 and 517 recorded incidents in 
2016/17. There were 17,642 recorded 
incidents of hate crime across London in 
the same period in 2017/18, an increase of 
3% on the previous year.

 There were 3,654 Domestic Abuse 
incidents recorded in Lewisham in 
2017/18.  

P
age 71



Housing Strategy

Actions
 Increase the number of social rented homes in Lewisham 

through our 500 home development programme
 Implement the Homelessness Reduction Act as a 

Trailblazer borough
 Provide all staff in Housing with training to ensure 

consistency of approach in high-quality customer service
 Drive down the use of nightly paid BnB and temporary 

accommodation. 

Progress
 Achieving the key operational priority of commencing 

500 new Council homes by 2018 and commenced a new 
programme of housebuilding

 Further reduced the No Recourse to Public Funds 
caseload rom the all time high of 330 in 2015 and from 125 
to 95 in 2017/18 and reduced costs by almost £500,000;

 Joined the pan-London Capital Letters company to help 
drive down the use of Nightly Paid Bed and Breakfast

 Successfully rolled out ‘People First’ training, and 
implemented new ways of working in the housing 
needs service to support the changes under the 
Homelessness Reduction Act

Housing Facts
 There are some 133,000 households in 

Lewisham;
 Private-rented is the fastest growing 

housing sector in the borough;
 There are some 33,000 social homes in the 

borough;
 The average monthly rent in Lewisham 

£1,275 (below the London average);
 Average house price in Lewisham is 

£416,000 (below the London average)

Equality and Diversity Statistics 
(between April and December 2018
 63% of social housing lets were to 

households led by a female
 47% of accepted homelessness 

households were from households who 
identify as Black/ African /Caribbean/ 
Black British

 3% of social housing lets were to 
residents who identify as Transgender

Data is collected on protected 
characteristics of housing applicants, but 
this data is patchy

P
age 72



 Social cohesion
 Older and vulnerable people
 School places and school place planning

Brexit

P
age 73



Next steps

 Commence work on the development of the new Comprehensive 
Equalities Scheme;

 Ensure that the next Comprehensive Equalities Scheme is lined up 
with the Mayor’s priorities;

 Improve granular level data collection;
 Consider the implications of Brexit on delivery of the new 

Comprehensive Equalities Scheme
 Embrace wider work being undertaken in support of migrant and 

refugee communities
 Commence preparation for the 2021 Census

P
age 74



1 
 

 

SAFER STRONGER COMMITTEE FRONT COVER NOTE 

Report title Youth Offending Service Update 

Date 12th March 19   

Author 

Contributor  

Keith Cohen  

Lewisham Strategic Youth Offending Service Manager 

Agenda item   8 

 

Open X Restricted  Confidential  

 

Purpose of the Report: 

 

 Performance and Data update  

 Youth Justice Partnership update 

 

Recommendations and areas of note:  

- To agree the update and progress made on the action plan  

- Receive updates next period 

 
 
1 Background:  
The Youth Justice Service is a partnership response focusing on 3 main Key Performance Indicators:  

 Reduction in First Time Entrants (per 1000 of local 10-17 population) 

 Reduction in reoffending binary/ frequency / reoffences per reoffender  

 Reduction in custody (per 1000 of local 10-17 population) 

We also review:  
 Use of Remand  

 Engagement in Education and employment  

 Suitable Accommodation  

Attached is the full data pack for information:  
 
2 Performance and data update 

Page 75

Agenda Item 8



2 
 

 
Lewisham uses the validated quarterly date from the Youth justice Board but also has a live tracker 
which shows the KPIs on the current cohort.  
 
Lewisham is showing improved performance across the KPIs for re-offending and custody. First time 
entrants are also moving in a positive direction particular if the live tracker data forecasts materialise 
(proving to be statistically accurate. See infographic report) the significant reduction in both re-
offending (binary) and re-offences per reoffender is an indicator that the HMIP Improvement Plan and 
associated re-modelling of the service is starting to have a positive impact. We will need to consider 
how to maintain this momentum in subsequent quartiles moving forward to sustain the change. 
The last quarters KPI is showing the following:  

           FTEs down 14.4 % ( 87 less per 1000 12-18 years than 12 months ago) 

 Re- offending down 4% ( this is now at the lowest rate since the data started being collected 

in 2012)  

 Number of re-offences per offender down 23.6% ( Lewisham is lower than the London 

average) 

 Custody down 50% 

 Overall rating green probably green  

There is also more recent unverified data which will be updated verbally. 

 
3.       Strategic Update 
 
At an update briefing for Lewisham EMT in early January covering the performance journey since 2016 
the following identified critical success elements in the Lewisham Improvement journey were 
communicated as follows: 
 
 The Improvement Plan was based on a fresh, compelling, analysis of how youth justice services need 
to work with young people and partners and parents. This is the Trauma Informed and Restorative 
Practice model – now widened into the whole systems approach.  

• The Improvement Plan was based on a fresh, compelling, analysis of how youth justice 
services need to work with young people and partners and parents. This is the Trauma 
Informed and Restorative Practice model – now widened into the whole systems 
approach. 

• An intensive application of data collection and analysis across the partnership to inform 
strategic and tactical work.  

• Excellent leadership capacity at strategic and service level ensuring that the implications 
of the adopted Model are implemented thoroughly across the services and with 
partners.  

• Refreshed Partnership Board functions which included close collective oversight of the 
Improvement Plan, Board member engagement with practice, and Board commitment 
to shared training on the model.  

    
4.        Sustaining the Success Plan for 2019 
 

Lewisham Youth Justice Partnership was last subject to an HMIP Inspection in September 2016. 
The current round of national inspections resumed in 2018 with a four year cycle and therefore it 
is unknown when Lewisham is likely to be inspected. The 2018-21 Youth Justice Strategic Plan was 
submitted for July 2018. It was agreed at the last board that the overall framework for the plan 
will remain though some key elements which are subject to change (for example budget) will be 

Page 76



3 
 

reviewed and updated. The Strategic Plan was signed off by all key partners who contribute to the 
Youth Justice Partnership in Lewisham. 
 
With the support of the Performance team a full self-evaluation against HMI P standards 
comparing September 2016 to our current delivery in December 2018 has been completed The 
evaluation offers context on the borough of Lewisham, as well as analysis of Lewisham YOS 
performance against four areas of Organisational Delivery (Governance and leadership; Staff; 
Partnership and Services and Information and Facilities Inspection Domain 1), along with 
exploratory against risks to service delivery, finance and key challenges for the future.  Allied to 
the self-assessment is the repository of evidence and documentation matched to HMI P 
requirements.  
 
For 2019/20 the focus will be on how the Service can continue to build upon its achievements in 
reducing the number of first time entrants further, maintaining strong performance in relation to 
reductions in re-offending and youth custody (both remand and sentenced). Key to achieving 
these outcomes will be the development of the Trauma-informed Restorative approach requiring. 
 

 Another round of training on specific themes and methods to manage and process 

trauma to include sleep hygiene, increased understanding of the negative impact of game 

and social media forums. 

 The strengthening of the multi-agency risk and safeguarding work via the ’Concern Hub’ 

The current structures have been under review taking into account a number of changes 

in our understanding and focus on a public health / whole systems approach to violence 

as well as rationalising multi agency actions for exploited children. 

 The evaluation and widening of the Violence Reduction Program. A 12 week group 

intervention which provides young people with insight into why they respond to situations 

with violence. It enables participants to recognise moments of hyper vigilance and 

manage stressful situations by encouraging positive thinking. 

 A revision and enhancement of our family offer. The ‘Think Family’ strand of the YOS 

vision was implemented in recognition that there needed to be a focus on viewing our 

work with young people within the family context and environment. Most importantly, 

that case officers felt competent in their ability to assess familial risk and protective 

factors, and apply adequate intervention to support their young people. It has been 

assessed that more work is needed to support YOS officers to evidence that they are 

thinking family, however case formulation and co-production aims to remedy this. 

 To further embed the Restorative Justice model into the work of the Referral Order 

Panel. It is intended to involve the Young Person in Restorative Enquiry ahead of their 

attending the Panel. This engagement will then inform additional intervention with the 

significant parent or parents or caregiver and through this seek to address relationship 

harm caused by the offending behaviour. In instances where there is also a community 

based victim harmed in the incident, it is intended that they to be engaged with 

restoratively to enhance the parties opportunity to address the event and see the matter 

resolved directly between them. Janine Carroll from Restorative Now will be 

commissioned to provide training, live coaching and buddying to staff to further embed 

the approach in Lewisham YOS. 

Page 77



4 
 

 A re-design of the Out of Court Decision making process to include the introduction of a 

panel for joint decision making with police colleagues and further strengthen pre-court 

interventions. 

 Contributing to the Community Champions Project by running workshops on the 

Trauma-informed Restorative Model. Many people in every community come into contact 

with young people and their families, and can be affected by these issues. These could 

vary from teachers and youth workers to faith leaders, sports coaches and local shop 

keepers and residents. We know that many of these people are worried about young 

people, have felt the effects of violence in their neighbourhoods, and want to play a more 

active role in keeping young people safe. 

 

 

 
 

Page 78



Lewisham YOS Data Report: 

February 2019

Contents

YJB National Indicators

- Young people offending for the first time

- Offenders who Re-Offend

- Youth Custody Outcomes

Live Tracker Comparisons

Live Tracker - First Time Offenders

Live Tracker - Existing Offenders

Remands

Education

Accommodation

3

4

5

6

8

9

10

Custody 7

Summary 2

Page 79



Young People Offending for the Youth Justice Board - National Indicators

Lewisham YOS Data Report: February 2019

Summary

Lewisham YOS - Key Performance Indicators

Young People Offending for 

the first time

Offenders who Re-offend Youth Custody Outcomes

Lewisham:

London:

National:

14.4%

19.4%

17.2%

Decrease

Decrease

Decrease

Lewisham:

London:

National:

4.1%

2.7%

1.4%

Decrease

Decrease

Decrease

Lewisham:

London:

National:

0.92

0.15

0.09

Decrease

Decrease

Decrease

Quarterly FTEs Cohort Size

Orders Ending: Jan 19

ETE

Active Orders: Feb 19

In ETE 60% 12

In ETE 71% 98

young people

young people

Orders Ending: Jan 19

Accommodation

Active Orders: Feb 19

Suitable 85% 17 young people

Suitable 88% 122 young people

RAG Status RAG Status

RAG Status RAG Status

RAG StatusRAG StatusRAG Status

Live TrackerDec-18

1%

The Headlines: Existing Dec-18

Nov 18 Cohort Size: 91

Dec 18 Cohort Size: 92

1
Re-offender/s in 

December 2018

44

85

116

156

36

62

91

111

J A N  - M A R

A P R  - J UN

J UL  - SE P

O C T  - DE C

RAG Status RAG Status

Custody 

Outcomes

20%
2017 5

2018 6

RAG Status

Oct - Dec 18

RAG Status

Young People Currently 

Remanded (31-Jan-19)

9YOI

129STC

Remanded YP

1

1

50SCH 1

Nights

P
age 80



Key Performance Indicators

The following data in this indicator comes from the Police National Computer and is published by the MoJ. The data is shown in rolling 

full-years for the 12 months to March, July, September, and December of each year.  The London Borough of Lewisham is unable to 

check, cross reference and/or provide further details regarding this indicator.

Offenders who Re-Offend Source: Youth Justice Board Final Data Set Sep 2018

Number of re-offenders -

Binary Rate: 3m cohort

Youth Custody Outcomes Source: Youth Justice Board Final Data Set Sep 2018

23

Oct 17 - Sep 18

Number of Custodial Outcomes Received

-50%

4.29 3.28

Oct 16 -

Dec 16

Oct 15 -

Dec 15

-23.5%

Re-offences per 

re-offender: 3m cohort

Young people offending for the first time Source: Youth Justice Board Final Data Set Sep 2018

R A G:

Jul 16 - Jun 17 Jul 17 - Jun 18

Rate per 100,000

-14.5%

594 508

% Change from selected baseline: Jul 16 - Jun 17

London

Down

19.4%

Lewisham

Down

14.4%

National

Down

17.2%

% Point change from selected baseline: Oct 15 - Dec 15

London

Down

2.7%

Lewisham

Down

4.1%

National

Down

1.4%

Re-offending among statistical neighbours: Oct 16 - Dec 16

-4.1%

Oct 15 -

Dec 15

Oct 16 -

Dec 16

51.5% 47.4%

Change from selected baseline: Oct 16 - Sep 17

London

Down

0.15

Lewisham

Down

0.92

National

Down

0.09

R A G:

Custodial oucomes among statistical neighbours: Jul 17 - Jun 18

41 44 46

FTEs among statistical neighbours - Ranked Highest: Jul 17 - Jun 181
2 3

4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11

Lambeth1

Southwark2

Lewisham3

Croydon4

Waltham Forest5

Haringey6

Islington7

Greenwich8

Enfield9

Brent10

Hackney11

R A G:

606 

546 

508 

451 

428 

403 

401 

371 

363 

325 

289 

Islington1

Brent2

Lambeth3

Croydon4

Southwark9

Hackney10

Greenwich11

6.30

4.70

4.67

3.94

Haringey5

Enfield6

Lewisham7

Waltham Forest8

3.57

3.50

3.28

3.15

3.06

2.86

2.65

1

2 3
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11

Croydon1

Lambeth2

Enfield3

Islington

Lewisham

Greenwich6

Brent7

Waltham Forest8

Southwark8

Haringey10

Hackney10

56

33

24

23

22

19

14

14

11

11

1

2

3 3 5 6 7
8 8 10 10

Oct 16 - Sep 17

46

3 24

5

Page 81



Live Tracker: Comparisons

First Time Entrants Cohort - January to December 2018

The Live Tracker is a toolkit which creates a cohort based on local data outcome dates and is in line with the 

Youth Justice Board (YJB) method of measuring reoffending. The rate is measured over a 12 month period and 

will be compared yearly and also on a quarterly basis.

Monthly Binary Rates: 2018 

The binary rate is calculated by the number of re-offenders by the number in the cohort.

January - December 2018 cohort size is 203 and has 31 re-offenders which gives a rate of 15.3%. The cohort size 

is growing but the number of re-offenders is remaineing low.

29
54

69
91

108
127

148
167 175 185 198 203

34%
31% 32% 30%

25%
21% 21%

19% 18% 17% 16% 15%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

0

50

100

150

200

250

Jan-18 Feb-18 Mar-18 Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18

B
in

a
ry

 R
a

te

C
o

h
o

rt
 S

iz
e

Date Period

2017

156Cohort Size

2018

111

% Change

-29%

First Time Entrants

125BAME 84 -33%

15.4Average Age 15.1 -0.02

20LAC at Disposal 9 -55.0%

34Female 20 -41%

122Male 90 -26%

0Unknown 1 N/A

2017

109

2018

92

% Change

-16%

Existing Offenders

83 78 -6%

15.8 15.8 0%

22 15 -32%

20 6 -70%

89 86 -3%

0 0 N/A

2017

265

2018

203

% Change

-23%

Combined Cohort

208 162 -22%

15.6 15.4 -1%

42 24 -43%

54 26 -52%

211 176 -17%

N/A 1 N/A

15Re-offended 11 -27% 20 20 0% 35 31 -11%

9.6%Binary Rate 9.9% 0.3% 18.3% 21.7% 3% 13.2% 15.3% 2%

Page 82



Feb: 

Live Tracker: First Time Entrants

Cohort Demographics: December 18

90

81%

056 12 16

50% 0% 11% 14%

Most Serious Re-Offences Committed: Jan - Dec 18

Young people with no previous involvement in the criminal justice system who have been sentenced for a 

offence/s within the given period.

24%

27
1

1%

15 15

6

11

7 8

12 13

4
7

9

4

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC

New Entrants to the Cohort

11
FTEs in the cohort 

have re-offended 1
Re-offender/s in 

December 2018

20

18%

111Head Count Ethnic Breakdown

Looked After Status 9

17
Number of further 

offences 

Male Female Unknown

Black or 

Black 

British

Asian or 

Asian 

British

Mixed Other White

8% 5 4

Mar 18 1 white male aged 14, 1mth 9days

1 white male aged 17, 1mth 2days

1 black male aged 16, 0mth 20daysMar 18 1 other male aged 17, 0mth 23days

Apr 18

Drugs: 3 Young people & time to re-offence 

Feb 18

Domestic Burglary: 2 Young people & time to re-offence 

Violence: 5 Young people & time to re-offence 

1 other female aged 15, 1mth 5days

Other: 1 Young people & time to re-offence 

Mar 18

1 other male aged 17, 3mths 7days

1 black female aged 13, 2mths 28daysMay 18

R A G:

1 black male aged 17, 1mth 18daysAug 18

1 black male aged 14, 6mths 10daysSep 18

1 black female aged 12, 4mths 31daysDec 18

Jul 18

1 black male aged 15, 1mth 21days

Custodial Sentences

0 December '18

4 Cohort Total

Page 83



Live Tracker: Existing Offenders

Cohort Demographics: December 18

Most Serious Re-Offences Committed: Jan - Dec 18

Young people currently or previously known to the criminal justice system who have received a further 

substantive order.

14

10 9
11 10 11

9

6
4 3 4

1

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC

Existing Offenders to the Cohort

15
Existing offenders in 

the cohort have re-

offended
1

Re-offender/s in 

December 201830
Number of further 

offences 

committed

1 white male aged 14, 1mth 29days

1 black male aged 15, 4mth 26days

1 mixed male aged 13, 0mths 20days

1 mixed male aged 17, 3mths 19days

May 18 Jun 18

Nov 18

1 black male aged 16, 4mths 5days

1 other male aged 17, 9mths 12days

Drugs: 4 Young people & time to re-offence 

Jun 18

Criminal Damage: 1 Young people & time to re-offence 

Apr 18

86

93%

152 13 12

57% 1% 14% 13% 15%

14
6

7%

92Head Count Ethnic Breakdown

Looked After Status 15

Male Female

Black or 

Black 

British

Asian or 

Asian 

British

Mixed Other White

12 3

Violence: 6 Young people & time to re-offence 

16%

R A G:

1 white male aged 17, 1mths 26days

Sep 181 black male aged 14, 4mth 26days 1 black male aged 16, 1mth 26daysJul 18

Jan 18 1 mixed male aged 15, 0mths 5days

Public Order: 2 Young people & time to re-offence 

Jul 18 1 black male aged 16, 3mths 15days

Domestic Burglary: 2 Young people & time to re-offence 

1 black male aged 15, 0mths 1daysApr 18

1 black male aged 15, 0mths 1days

1 black male aged 15, 0mths 1days

Custodial Sentences

0 December '18

11 Cohort Total

Page 84



Quarterly Custody Outcomes

10

24

5 5

9 8

1

6

JAN - MAR APR - JUN JUL - SEP OCT - DEC

2017 2018

Custody

Young people who received a substantive criminal custodial disposal type providing they were aged under 18 on 

the date of first hearing. Identical sentences given on the same day are counted only once. Recalls to custody are 

not included and excludes outcomes where the result of an appeal was successful or changed on appeal. 

R A G:

3Detention Training Order

2017 Cohort: 2018 Cohort:

1Section 91

2Under 12 months

312 months +

5Male

0Female

514-16 years

010-13 years

5BAME

0White

4Detention Training Order

2Section 91

2Under 12 months

412 months +

6Male

0Female

6BAME

0White

514-16 years

010-13 years

1Section 226B 0Section 226B

20%

5 6

Page 85



Remand Bed Nights: April 2017 - March 2018

40 31

2017 2018

YOI

STC

SCH 100%

-40%

-21%

Young People Remanded

2017 2018

Cost

£425,154 £363,664 -14%

£361,756

£35,588

£309,272

£13,896

-15%

-61%

28

97%

Male

25

86%

BAME

10-14yrs

Average Stay

71 Days

60%

2017-18 Highlights

YOI

STC

SCH

-21%

-24%

-61%

Nights Remanded

Bed Night Cost Comparisons - Current Remands by Establishment Type

YOI

-

-

-

STC SCH

£191 £189 £536 £546 £579 £610

Total to Date

-70%

Cost comparison below reflects the amount of remand episodes open/on-going during the period

Cost per night Cost per night Cost per night

-86%

-79%

-79%

-63%

-69%

Young People Young People Currently Remanded (31-Jan-19)

15y 16y 17y

0
0

3
0

YOI STC

Bed Nights

14y10-13y

0

£- £-

1150%

0%

1217%

Q4 2018-19Q4 2017-18 Q4 2018-19Q4 2017-18Q4 2018-19Q4 2017-18 Q4 2018-19Q4 2017-18

616 129

£330,176 £70,434

7 1

0 9

£0 £1,701

0 1

4 50

£2,316 £30,500

1 1

620 188

£332,492 £102,635

8 3

67%

2

33%

1
White

2

67%

Gender Ethnicity Age

-23%

10% 3

Violence

26%

Robbery

14%

Drugs

BAME

1

33%

Top Offence Types

SCH

2 67%

0

0%

1 33%

0%

0

0

Remands

Young People

Cost per night: £189

9

£1,701

Cost per night: £546 Cost per night: £610

Cost to Date

1

of the total

Total

188

£102,635

3

Average Cost £34,212

Bed Nights

Young People

% of yp

Cost to Date

Average Cost

33%

£1,700

129

£70,434

1

of the total33%

£70,433

50

£30,500

1

of the total33%

£30,499

R A G:

Page 86



R A G:

60%

98 young person

71%

young people98

In ETE

27%

young people38

Not in ETE

1%

young people2

Status Unverified

1%

young person1

Status Not Recorded

young people12

In ETE

60%

25%

young people5

Not in ETE

15%

young people3

Status Unverified

young people0

Status Not Recorded

0%

Education/Training/Employment

young people83

SEN not identified

59%

young people23

Yes

16%

R A G:

Ended orders in Jan 2019

Active orders in Feb 2019 SEND identified in active cases

young people3

Yet to Clarify

2%

SEND identified in cases ended

young people31

No assessment

22%

16%71%

Jan 2019

young people13

SEN not identified

65%

young people3

Yes

15%

young people0

Yet to Clarify

0%

young people4

No assessment

20%

15%60%

12 4

98 23

Source: Latest AssetPlus assessment

Question: Have any Special Educational 

Needs been identified?

Source: Latest AssetPlus assessment

Question: Have any Special Educational 

Needs been identified?

Feb 2019

20Total Cases Closed: 20Total Cases Closed:

139Total Active Cases: 139Total Active Cases:

Page 87



Suitable Accommodation

Active Orders: Feb 19Orders Ending: Jan 19

R A G:

85%

young people17

In Suitable Acc.

10%

young people2

In Unsuitable Acc.

5%

young person1

Status Unverified

0%

young people0

Status Not Recorded

R A G:

young people122

In Suitable Acc.

88%

9%

young people12

In Unsuitable Acc.

2%

young people3

Status Unverified

young people2

Status Not Recorded

1%

Accommodation

88%85%

17 122

20Total Cases Closed: 139Total Active Cases:

Page 88



 

 

Safer Stronger Communities Select Committee 

Title Select Committee work programme 

Contributor Scrutiny Manager Item 10 

Class Part 1 (open) 12 March 2019 

 
1. Purpose 
 
1.1 To provide Members of the Select Committee with an overview of the work 

programme for 2018-19 and to advise the Committee about the process for agreeing 
the 2019-20 work programme. 

 
2. Summary 
 
2.1 At the beginning of the municipal year each select committee is required to draw up a 

work programme for submission to the Overview and Scrutiny Business Panel. The 
Panel considers the suggested work programmes and coordinates activities between 
select committees in order to maximise the use of scrutiny resources and avoid 
duplication. 

 
2.2 The meeting on 12 March is the last scheduled meeting of the Safer Stronger 

Communities Select Committee in the 2018-19 municipal year. The Committee’s 
completed work programme is attached at appendix B; it lists the issues considered 
in 2018-19. The Committee is being asked to put forward suggestions for the 2019-
20 work programme. 

 
3. Recommendations 
 
3.1 The Select Committee is asked to: 
 

 consider the prioritisation process and prioritise themes for the 2019/20 work 
programme. 

 note the Committee’s Terms of Reference at appendix A; 

 note the completed work programme attached at appendix B; 

 review the issues covered in 2018-19 municipal year; 

 take note of the notice of key decisions attached at appendix C; 

 consider any matters arising that it may wish to suggest for future scrutiny. 
 
4. Safer Stronger Communities Select Committee 2018-2019 
 
4.1 The Committee had six meetings in the 2018-19 municipal year. The completed work 

programme is attached at appendix B. The Committee undertook an in-depth review 
into Stop and Search and Prevent policies and the effect on community relations. 
This formed a large part of the Committee’s workload over the year 

 
  

 

Page 89

Agenda Item 10



 

 

 
5. Priorisation and planning for 2019-20 
 
5.1 Eight meetings will be scheduled for 2019-20 municipal year. A work programme 

report will be put forward at the first Safer Stronger Communities Select Committee 
meeting of the 2019-20 year for members to discuss and agree. The report will take 
account of the Committee’s previous work and may incorporate:  

 

 The scrutiny prioritisations process and potential key themes and priorities for 
2019/20 

 issues arising as a result of previous scrutiny; 

 issues that the Committee is required to consider by virtue of its terms of 
reference; 

 items requiring follow up from Committee reviews and recommendations; 

 issues suggested by members of the public; 

 petitions; 

 standard reviews of policy implementation or performance; 

 suggestions from officers; 

 relevant decisions due to be made by Mayor and Cabinet. 
 
5.5 When deciding on items to include in the work programme, the Committee should 

have regard to: 
 

 the criteria for selecting and prioritising topics; 

 the Committee’s terms of reference; 

 the capacity for additional items in terms of the Committee’s time and resources; 

 the context for setting the work programme and advice from officers; 
 
Safer Stronger Communities Select Committee terms of reference 

 
5.6 The Committee’s terms of reference are included at appendix A.  
 
5.7 The Committee’s areas of responsibility, include, but are not limited to: 

 

 Equalities 

 Community safety and anti-social behaviour 

 The community and voluntary sector 

 Local assemblies 

 Libraries 
 
5.8 The Committee also has the responsibility for carrying out the statutory crime and 

disorder scrutiny function. The constitution sets out that this enables the committee to 
call before it members of the Safer Lewisham Partnership to explain decisions made 
or actions taken in the delivery of their crime and disorder functions. 

Page 90



 

 

The flow chart below, based on the model from the Centre for Public Scrutiny (CfPS) is 
designed to help Members decide which items should be added to the work programme. 

 
 

Page 91



 

 

5.9 The remit of the Safer Stronger Communities Select Committee is broad and for the 
Committee to ensure its work programme is as tailored and focussed as possible 
delivering robust scrutiny, it is important to ensure items are prioritised and key 
outcomes identified. It is likely that due to the volume of work, the Committee will 
have to make difficult decisions considering where it can most add value and 
influence and which items are of most importance to the Council and Lewisham 
residents. Particular care needs to be taken regarding the potential for duplicating 
work by other committees and boards.  

 
5.9 As well as using the prioritisation process above, the Committee may wish to 

highlight key themes which they believe to be of strategic importance for the 
Committee for 2019/20. These can thene be used by the Committee to help 
determine whether items should be added to the work programme. 

 
6. Different types of scrutiny 
 
6.1 It is important to agree how each work programme item will be scrutinised. Some 

items may only require an information report to be presented to the Committee and 
others will require performance monitoring data or analysis to be presented. 
Typically, the majority of items take the form of single meeting items, where 
members: 

 
(a) agree what information and analysis they wish to receive in order to achieve their 
desired outcomes; 
(b) receive a report presenting that information and analysis; 
(c) ask questions of the presenting officer or guest; 
(d) agree, following discussion of the report, whether the Committee will make 
recommendations or receive further information or analysis before summarising its 
views. 

 
6.2 For each item, the Committee should consider what type of scrutiny is required and 

whether the item is high or medium/low priority (using the prioritisation process). 
Allocating priority to work programme items will enable the Committee to decide 
which low and medium priority items it should remove from its work programme, 
when it decides to add high priority issues in the course of the year. 

 
In-depth review 

 
6.3 Some items might be suitable for an in-depth review, where the item is scrutinised 

over a series of meetings. Normally this takes at least four meetings to complete: 
 

 Meeting 1: Scoping paper (planning the review) 

 Meetings 2 & 3: Evidence sessions 

 Meeting 4: Agreeing a report and recommendations 
 
6.4 If the Committee wants to designate one of its work programme items as an in-depth 

review, this should be done at the first meeting of the municipal year to allow 
sufficient time to carry out the review. A scoping paper for the review will then be 
prepared before the summer recess. 

 
 

Page 92



 

 

7. Financial implications 
 

There are no financial implications arising from the implementation of the 
recommendations in this report.  
 

8. Legal implications 
 

In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, all scrutiny select committees must 
devise and submit a work programme to the Business Panel at the start of each 
municipal year. 

 
9. Equalities implications 
 
9.1 The Equality Act 2010 (the Act) introduced a public sector equality duty (the equality 

duty or the duty).  It covers the following protected characteristics: age, disability, 
gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, 
religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation. 
 

9.2 In summary, the Council must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the 
need to: 

 eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other 
conduct prohibited by the Act. 

 advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected 
characteristic and those who do not. 

 foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and 
those who do not. 

  
9.3 It is not an absolute requirement to eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment, 

victimisation or other prohibited conduct, or to promote equality of opportunity or foster 
good relations between persons who share a protected characteristic and those who 
do not. It is a duty to have due regard to the need to achieve the goals listed at 12.2 
above.  

 
9.4 The weight to be attached to the duty will be dependent on the nature of the decision 

and the circumstances in which it is made. This is a matter for the Mayor, bearing in 
mind the issues of relevance and proportionality. The Mayor must understand the 
impact or likely impact of the decision on those with protected characteristics who are 
potentially affected by the decision. The extent of the duty will necessarily vary from 
case to case and due regard is such regard as is appropriate in all the circumstances. 
 

9.5 The Equality and Human Rights Commission has issued Technical Guidance on the 
Public Sector Equality Duty and statutory guidance entitled “Equality Act 2010 
Services, Public Functions & Associations Statutory Code of Practice”. The Council 
must have regard to the statutory code in so far as it relates to the duty and attention 
is drawn to Chapter 11 which deals particularly with the equality duty. The Technical 
Guidance also covers what public authorities should do to meet the duty. This includes 
steps that are legally required, as well as recommended actions. The guidance does 
not have statutory force but nonetheless regard should be had to it, as failure to do so 
without compelling reason would be of evidential value. The statutory code and the 
technical guidance can be found at: https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/advice-
and-guidance/equality-act-codes-practice 

Page 93

https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/advice-and-guidance/equality-act-codes-practice
https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/advice-and-guidance/equality-act-codes-practice


 

 

 
https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/advice-and-guidance/equality-act-technical-
guidance  

 
 

9.6 The Equality and Human Rights Commission (EHRC) has previously issued five 
guides for public authorities in England giving advice on the equality duty:  

 The essential guide to the public sector equality duty 

 Meeting the equality duty in policy and decision-making 

 Engagement and the equality duty: A guide for public authorities 

 Objectives and the equality duty. A guide for public authorities 

 Equality Information and the Equality Duty: A Guide for Public Authorities 
 

9.7 The essential guide provides an overview of the equality duty requirements including 
the general equality duty, the specific duties and who they apply to. It covers what 
public authorities should do to meet the duty including steps that are legally required, 
as well as recommended actions. The other four documents provide more detailed 
guidance on key areas and advice on good practice. Further information and resources 
are available at:  
https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/advice-and-guidance/public-sector-equality-
duty-guidance#h1 

 
Background documents 

 
Lewisham Council’s Constitution 

 
Centre for Public Scrutiny: the Good Scrutiny Guide 

 
 
  

Page 94

https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/advice-and-guidance/equality-act-technical-guidance
https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/advice-and-guidance/equality-act-technical-guidance
https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/node/691
https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/node/562
https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/node/820
https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/node/1461
https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/node/838
https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/advice-and-guidance/public-sector-equality-duty-guidance#h1
https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/advice-and-guidance/public-sector-equality-duty-guidance#h1


 

 

Appendix A 
Safer Stronger Communities Select Committee  
 
(a) To fulfill all overview and scrutiny functions in relation to the discharge by responsible 
authorities of their crime and disorder function as set out in Sections 19 and 20 Police & 
Justice Act 2006, as amended from time to time, and all other relevant legislation. This shall 
include the power:  
 

(i) to review or scrutinise decisions made, or other action taken, in connection with the 
discharge by responsible authorities of their crime and disorder function,  
 
(ii) to make reports or recommendations to the local authority or the executive with 
respect to the discharge of those functions; and  
 
(iii) to make reports and/or recommendations to the local authority with respect to any 
matter which is a local crime and disorder matter in relation to a member of the authority. 
A local crime and disorder matter in relation to a member means a 40 matter concerning 
crime and disorder (including, in particular, forms of crime and disorder involving anti 
social behaviour or other behaviour adversely affecting the environment), or the misuse 
of drugs, alcohol and other substances, which affect all or part of the electoral area for 
which the member is elected or any person who lives or works there.  

 
(b) make proposals to the Executive to promote equality of opportunity within the borough, 
including issues of discrimination based on race, ethnic origin, gender, disability, sexuality, 
age and/or class;  
 
(c) to recommend to the Executive, the Council or an appropriate committee proposals for 
policy development in relation to equalities issues;  
 
(d) to analyse policy options as necessary to inform the proposals to be made to the 
Executive or other appropriate committee;  
 
(e) to advise the Executive or other committee on all matters relating to equality of 
opportunity both in terms of policy, service provision, employment and/or access to public 
services;  
 
(f) to enhance and develop existing and innovative consultative and/or advisory work for 
equality of opportunity and to consider issues of inequality and discrimination across the 
borough;  
 
(g) to consider and recommend to the Executive, ways in which participation by 
disadvantaged and under-represented sections of the community might be more effectively 
involved in the democratic processes of local government;  
 
(h) to pilot methods of consultation and involvement and to report back to the Executive or 
appropriate committee on their effectiveness with recommendation if appropriate;  
 
(i) to establish links with and liaise with external organisations in the borough which are 
concerned with the promotion of equality of opportunity.  
 
(j) Overview & Scrutiny functions (excluding call-in) in relation to library provision. 

Page 95



This page is intentionally left blank



Safer Stronger Communities Select Committee 2018/19

Work Item Type of review Priority

Strategic 

Priority

Delivery 

deadline 12-Jul 19-Sep 05-Nov 19-Dec 04-Feb 12-Mar

Budget Cuts Proposals Standard Item High CP10 Jul-18 Budget cuts

Election of Chair and Vice-Chair
Constitutional 

requirement
High Jul-18

Select Committee Work Programme 2018/19
Constitutional 

requirement
High Jul-18

Library and Information Service Annual Report.
Performance 

monitoring
High CP10 Jul-18

Council's Employment Profile Policy Development High CP10 Jul-18

Provision for the LGBT community  (response) In-depth review High
CP1 and 

CP10
Jul-18

6-month update

Main Grants Programme Consultation
Performance 

Monitoring
High CP1 Jul-18

Consult results

Introduction to Public Protection and Safety Information Item High CP4 Jul-18

Local Police and Fire Service Update
Performance 

Monitoring
High CP4 on-going

Evidence In-depth review

Demographic Change In-depth review High
CP1 and 

CP10
Sep-18

6-month 

update PRESENTATION

The Impact of Prevent/Counter Terrorism strategies and stop and 

search on relations between the BME community and the Police
In-depth review High

CP1,CP4 + 

CP10
Mar-19

SCOPE Evidence Evidence Final report

Modern Day Slavery
Performance 

Monitoring
High CP4

YOS Action Plan
Performance 

Monitoring
High CP4 Dec-18

National Probation Service and community rehabilitation company Standard Item High CP4 Jan-18

Youth Violence and Knife Crime
Performance 

Monitoring
High CP4 Feb-19

Lewisham Disability Coalition Information Item High CP1 Feb-19

Safer Lewisham Plan
Performance 

Monitoring
High CP4 Mar-19

Main Grants Programme Consultation
Performance 

monitoring
High Mar-19

Comprehensive Equalities Scheme Annual Review 2017
Performance 

Monitoring
High

CP1 and 

CP10
Mar-19

Local Assemblies
Performace 

Monitoring
High CP1 Mar-19

Item completed

Item on-going 1) 12-Jul 4) 19-Dec

Item outstanding 2) 19-Sep 5) 4-Feb

Proposed timeframe 3) 5-Nov 6) 12-Mar

Meetings

P
age 97



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
  

 
 

 

  
FORWARD PLAN OF KEY DECISIONS 

 

   
 

Forward Plan March 2019 - June 2019 
 
 
This Forward Plan sets out the key decisions the Council expects to take during the next four months.  
 
Anyone wishing to make representations on a decision should submit them in writing as soon as possible to the relevant contact officer (shown as number (7) in 
the key overleaf). Any representations made less than 3 days before the meeting should be sent toKevin Flaherty, the Local Democracy Officer, at the Council 
Offices or kevin.flaherty@lewisham.gov.uk. However the deadline will be 4pm on the working day prior to the meeting. 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A “key decision”* means an executive decision which is likely to: 
 
(a) result in the Council incurring expenditure which is, or the making of savings which are, significant having regard to the Council’s budget for the service or function to which the 

decision relates; 
 

(b) be significant in terms of its effects on communities living or working in an area comprising two or more wards. 

 
 

P
age 99



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

 

December 2018 
 

Financial Regulations and the 
Directorate Schemes of 
Delegation 
 

27/02/19 
Council 
 

David Austin, Head of 
Corporate Resources and 
Councillor Joe Dromey, 
Cabinet Member for 
Finance, Skills and Jobs 
(job share) 
 

 
  

 

November 2018 
 

Annual Budget 2019-20 
 

27/02/19 
Council 
 

David Austin, Head of 
Corporate Resources and 
Councillor Joe Dromey, 
Cabinet Member for 
Finance, Skills and Jobs 
(job share) 
 

 
  

 

November 2018 
 

Adoption of Charter against 
Modern Slavery and Approval 
of 1st Annual Modern Slavery 
and Human Trafficking 
Statement 
 

27/02/19 
Council 
 

Aileen Buckton, 
Executive Director for 
Community Services and 
Councillor Joani Reid, 
Cabinet Member for 
Safer Communities 
 

 
  

 

February 2019 
 

Corporate Strategy 
 

27/02/19 
Council 
 

Janet Senior, Executive 
Director for Resources & 
Regeneration and Mayor 
Damien Egan, Mayor 
 

 
  

 

January 2019 
 

Lewisham Homes Articles 
Amendment - Governance 
 

13/03/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Customer Services and 
Councillor Paul Bell, 
Cabinet Member for 
Housing 
 

 
  

 

December 2018 
 

Redevelopment of 
PLACE/Ladywell site 

13/03/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 

 
  

 P
age 100



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

  Customer Services and 
Councillor Paul Bell, 
Cabinet Member for 
Housing 
 

January 2019 
 

Waldron Health Centre S106 
Bid 
 

13/03/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Customer Services and 
Mayor Damien Egan, 
Mayor 
 

 
  

 

February 2019 
 

Longfield Crescent 
 

13/03/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Customer Services and 
Councillor Paul Bell, 
Cabinet Member for 
Housing 
 

 
  

 

December 2018 
February 2019 

Parking Policy Update 
 

13/03/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Customer Services and 
Councillor Brenda 
Dacres, Cabinet Member 
for Parks, 
Neighbourhoods and 
Transport (job share) 
 

 
  

 

December 2018 
 

Beckenham Place Park update 
 

13/03/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Customer Services and 
Councillor Brenda 
Dacres, Cabinet Member 
for Parks, 
Neighbourhoods and 
Transport (job share) 
 

 
  

 

P
age 101



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

February 2019 
 

Commissioning of Extra Care 
Housing at Conrad Court 
 

13/03/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Aileen Buckton, 
Executive Director for 
Community Services and 
Councillor Chris Best, 
Deputy Mayor 
 

 
  

 

December 2018 
 

Learning Disability Framework 
- shortlisting approval 
 

13/03/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Aileen Buckton, 
Executive Director for 
Community Services and 
Councillor Chris Best, 
Deputy Mayor 
 

 
  

 

January 2019 
 

Pay Statement 
 

13/03/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

David Austin, Head of 
Corporate Resources and 
Councillor Joe Dromey, 
Cabinet Member for 
Finance, Skills and Jobs 
(job share) 
 

 
  

 

February 2019 
 

Extension of Sexuak Health 
Clinic Contract with LGT 
 

13/03/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Aileen Buckton, 
Executive Director for 
Community Services and 
Councillor Chris Best, 
Deputy Mayor 
 

 
  

 

February 2019 
 

Residential Portfolio 
Acquisition 
 

13/03/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Customer Services and 
Councillor Paul Bell, 
Cabinet Member for 
Housing 
 

 
  

 

February 2019 
 

New Homes Development 
 

13/03/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Customer Services and 
Councillor Paul Bell, 

 
  

 

P
age 102



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

Cabinet Member for 
Housing 
 

February 2019 
 

Community Grant Appeals 
 

27/03/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Aileen Buckton, 
Executive Director for 
Community Services and 
Councillor Jonathan 
Slater, Cabinet Member 
for Community Sector 
 

 
  

 

February 2019 
 

Catford Regeneration 
Partnership Limited 2019-20 
Business Plan 
 

27/03/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Customer Services and 
Mayor Damien Egan, 
Mayor 
 

 
  

 

January 2019 
 

Retendering of the 
Occupational Health and 
Employee Assistant 
Programme 
 

27/03/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

David Austin, Head of 
Corporate Resources and 
Councillor Joe Dromey, 
Cabinet Member for 
Finance, Skills and Jobs 
(job share) 
 

 
  

 

October 2018 
 

Neighbourhood CIL Strategy 
 

27/03/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Janet Senior, Executive 
Director for Resources & 
Regeneration and Mayor 
Damien Egan, Mayor 
 

 
  

 

February 2019 
 

Local Democracy Review 
 

27/03/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Customer Services and 
Councillor Kevin Bonavia, 
Cabinet Member for 
Democracy, Refugees & 
Accountability 
 

 
  

 

P
age 103



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

February 2019 
 

Boundary Commission Review 
 

27/03/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Customer Services and 
Councillor Kevin Bonavia, 
Cabinet Member for 
Democracy, Refugees & 
Accountability 
 

 
  

 

February 2019 
 

Local Safeguarding 
Partnership - Future 
Arrangements 
 

27/03/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Sara Williams, Executive 
Director, Children and 
Young People and 
Councillor Chris 
Barnham, Cabinet 
Member for School 
Performance 
 

 
  

 

February 2019 
 

Annual Lettings Plan 
 

27/03/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Customer Services and 
Councillor Paul Bell, 
Cabinet Member for 
Housing 
 

 
  

 

February 2019 
 

Pre-Tender Authorisation for 
Procurement of a supplier to 
operate CCTV control room 
 

27/03/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Aileen Buckton, 
Executive Director for 
Community Services and 
Councillor Joani Reid, 
Cabinet Member for 
Safer Communities 
 

 
  

 

February 2019 
 

Local Democracy Review 
 

03/04/19 
Council 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Customer Services and 
Councillor Kevin Bonavia, 
Cabinet Member for 
Democracy, Refugees & 
Accountability 

 
  

 

P
age 104



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

 

January 2019 
 

Pay Statement 
 

03/04/19 
Council 
 

David Austin, Head of 
Corporate Resources and 
Councillor Joe Dromey, 
Cabinet Member for 
Finance, Skills and Jobs 
(job share) 
 

 
  

 

November 2018 
 

Neighbourhood CIL Strategy 
 

03/04/19 
Council 
 

Janet Senior, Executive 
Director for Resources & 
Regeneration and Mayor 
Damien Egan, Mayor 
 

 
  

 

February 2019 
 

Catford Regeneration 
Partnership Limited 2019-20 
Business Plan 
 

03/04/19 
Council 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Customer Services and 
Councillor Kevin Bonavia, 
Cabinet Member for 
Democracy, Refugees & 
Accountability 
 

 
  

 

February 2019 
 

Boundary Commission Review 
 

03/04/19 
Council 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Customer Services and 
Councillor Kevin Bonavia, 
Cabinet Member for 
Democracy, Refugees & 
Accountability 
 

 
  

 

December 2018 
 

Heathside and Lethbridge 
Phases 5 & 6 Land Assembly. 
Part 1 & 2 
 

24/04/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Customer Services and 
Councillor Paul Bell, 
Cabinet Member for 
Housing 
 

 
  

 

P
age 105



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

December 2018 
 

Commissioning of Older Adults 
Day Services parts 1 and 2 
 

24/04/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Aileen Buckton, 
Executive Director for 
Community Services and 
Councillor Chris Best, 
Deputy Mayor 
 

 
  

 

December 2018 
 

New Woodlands School 
Remodelling works Contract 
Award 
 

24/04/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Sara Williams, Executive 
Director, Children and 
Young People and 
Councillor Chris 
Barnham, Cabinet 
Member for School 
Performance 
 

 
  

 

February 2019 
 

Watergate Special School 
Expansion Contract Award 
 

24/04/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Sara Williams, Executive 
Director, Children and 
Young People and 
Councillor Chris 
Barnham, Cabinet 
Member for School 
Performance 
 

 
  

 

December 2018 
 

Proposals for private rented 
sector licensing in Lewisham 
 

24/04/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Customer Services and 
Councillor Paul Bell, 
Cabinet Member for 
Housing 
 

 
  

 

February 2019 
 

Re-Procurement of Tier 4 
Substance Misuse framework 
Contract for adult substance 
misuse services 
 

24/04/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Aileen Buckton, 
Executive Director for 
Community Services and 
Councillor Chris Best, 
Deputy Mayor 
 

 
  

 

February 2019 Community Grant Appeals 24/04/19 Aileen Buckton,   

P
age 106



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

 Outcomes 
 

Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Executive Director for 
Community Services and 
Councillor Jonathan 
Slater, Cabinet Member 
for Community Sector 
 

  

February 2019 
 

Business Rates Revaluation 
Support Scheme' 
 

24/04/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

David Austin, Head of 
Corporate Resources and 
Councillor Amanda De 
Ryk, Cabinet Member for 
Finance, Skills and Jobs 
(job share) 
 

 
  

 

May 2018 
 

Stillness School Kitchen and 
Dining Hall Contract 
 

07/05/19 
Executive Director 
for Children and 
Young People 
 

Sara Williams, Executive 
Director, Children and 
Young People and 
Councillor Chris 
Barnham, Cabinet 
Member for School 
Performance 
 

 
  

 

October 2018 
 

Chelwood Nursery Expansion 
 

07/05/19 
Executive Director 
for Resources and 
Regeneration 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Customer Services and 
Councillor Chris 
Barnham, Cabinet 
Member for School 
Performance 
 

 
  

 

October 2018 
 

Rockbourne Community 
Centre Refurbishment 
 

07/05/19 
Executive Director 
for Resources and 
Regeneration 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Customer Services and 
Councillor Brenda 
Dacres, Cabinet Member 
for Parks, 
Neighbourhoods and 
Transport (job share) 

 
  

 

P
age 107



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

 

February 2019 
 

Lewisham Homes Acquisitions 
Programme 
 

08/05/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Customer Services and 
Councillor Paul Bell, 
Cabinet Member for 
Housing 
 

 
  

 

February 2019 
 

Authorisation to consult on 
adoption of new Conservation 
Area Appraisal and Article 4 
Direction Deptford High Street 
Conservation Area 
 

08/05/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Customer Services and 
Mayor Damien Egan, 
Mayor 
 

 
  

 

August 2018 
 

Lewisham Strategic Heat 
Network Business Case 
 

05/06/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Customer Services and 
Mayor Damien Egan, 
Mayor 
 

 
  

 

February 2019 
 

Adoption Lewisham Park 
Conservation Area, 
accompanying Article 4 
direction, and appraisal 
document 
 

26/06/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Kevin Sheehan, 
Executive Director for 
Customer Services and 
Mayor Damien Egan, 
Mayor 
 

 
  

 

February 2019 
 

Provision of Services to Adults 
with Learning Disabilities - 
Contract Award 
 

26/06/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

Aileen Buckton, 
Executive Director for 
Community Services and 
Councillor Chris Best, 
Deputy Mayor 
 

 
  

 

February 2019 
 

Children and Young People's 
Plan 2019-21 
 

17/07/19 
Council 
 

Sara Williams, Executive 
Director, Children and 
Young People and 
Councillor Chris 

 
  

 

P
age 108



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

Barnham, Cabinet 
Member for School 
Performance 
 

February 2019 
 

Insurance Renewal 
 

30/10/19 
Mayor and Cabinet 
 

David Austin, Head of 
Corporate Resources and 
Councillor Amanda De 
Ryk, Cabinet Member for 
Finance, Skills and Jobs 
(job share) 
 

 
  

 

P
age 109



FORWARD PLAN – KEY DECISIONS 

Date included in 
forward plan 

Description of matter under 
consideration 

Date of Decision 
Decision maker 
 

Responsible Officers / 
Portfolios 

Consultation Details Background papers / 
materials 

 

      

      

P
age 110


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of the meeting held on 4 February 2019
	2 Declarations of interest
	4 Provision for the LGBT+ Community in Lewisham - 6 month update
	5 Comprehensive Equalities Scheme Annual Review
	05AppACESAnnualReviewSSCSC120319

	8 Youth Offending Service Action Plan
	08AppAYOSupdateSSCSC120319.docx

	10 Select Committee work programme
	10Appendix B - Select committee work programmes 2018-19
	10ApprendixCkeydecisionplanSSCSC120319


